
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

Tuesday, July 13, 2021
Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us
Internet/Video Link: https://zoom.us/j/97566060796 or

Teleconference Phone #s: U.S.: +1-346-248-7799; + 1-312-626-6799; +1-646-558-8656; +1-669-900-9128
+1-253-215-8782; +1-301-715-8592; Enter ID#: 975 6606 0796

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at 775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours
in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

Pursuant to the Executive Orders of Governor Abbott, and other authority provided by the Texas Attorney General, the City
Council will convene in-person and via video and/or teleconference. If the Executive Orders of Governor Abbott are amended
and prohibit the use of video and/or teleconference access to the meeting, the meeting will be held in-person only.

12:30 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

           

1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

1. 1. Presentation and Discussion Regarding Proposed Amendments to the Lubbock City
Charter

  

 

1. 2. Future Needs Committee Recommendations Follow-up and Potential Bond Election
Timeline

  

 

1. 3. American Rescue Plan - Interim Final Rule and Funding Eligibility   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

2. Executive Session   

 

2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,   

http://www.mylubbock.us


2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

2. 1. 1. Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas Surgical Health Services, et al v. City of
Lubbock, Texas, Case No.5:21-cv-114 in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Texas, Lubbock Division

  

 

2. 1. 2. The City of Lubbock Charter and Potential Charter Amendment Election   

 

2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code Section 551.071,
seeking the advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
offers and hold a consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: (i) legal advice and counsel
regarding matters identified in Section 2.6(a)-(f) of this Agenda; (ii) legal advice and counsel
regarding the City of Lubbock’s Note Purchase Program with Bank of America; and legal
issues regarding bond-related matters.

  

 

2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

2. 3. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors,
Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors, Permit and License Appeal
Board, and the Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

2. 5. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074,
to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of
the following:

  

 

2. 5. 1. City Manager   

 

2. 6. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code Section 551.086,
to discuss and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light,
reasonably related to the following categories:

a) generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those
costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling;
b) bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric
Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies;
c) effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and

  



c) effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and
contracts;
d) risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;
e) plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other
than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the
public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider);
• Discuss and deliberate plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements,
additions, or sales.
f) customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information,
system load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

3. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

3. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition to the Lubbock Arts Alliance for organizing and
hosting this year's Lubbock Arts Festival

  

 

3. 3. 2. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of Golf Cart Safety Awareness Month   

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on July 13, 2021.  If a citizen is attending the
meeting by video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at 
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on July 13, 2021.  Submitted
comments must include name and address.  Each comment will be read aloud for a
period of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules.  Citizen
Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items.  Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be
referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

Public Hearings - Any person wishing to speak at a posted public hearing (Item
7.2), may do so via Zoom by using the “Raised Hand” feature. When utilizing Zoom
through a telephone, press *9 to "raise your hand" and you will be placed in the queue.

  

 



 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. May 18, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 8, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
June 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting

 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0077, Amendment 35, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the General Fund Capital to establish and appropriate funding for Capital
Improvement Projects 92711 Fire Station 20, 92712 Transportation Improvements/Unpaved
Roads, and 92713 Erskine Street.

 

6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
2021-O0075, Amendment 36, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Lubbock Power and Light Fund for the addition of four full-time positions.

 

6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 37, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Storm Water Operating Fund Revenue.

 

6. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0076,
abandoning and closing a portion of a Drainage Easement, located in Spanish Bit Court
Addition, Section 7, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

6. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a
Drainage Easement, located in Section 21, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, for a new plat
for Fountain Hills.

 

6. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, four Easements out of Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock County,
Texas, to be utilized for the Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation Project.

 

6. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, four Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds and one
Drainage Easement, out of Sections 30 and 31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be
utilized for the Upland Avenue roadway expansion project.

 

6. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution approving the inclusion of medians and



6. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution approving the inclusion of medians and
islands in the streets within the boundaries of The Ridge Development located along the
west side of Quincy Avenue, extending from 98th Street to 105th Street, City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, Texas.

 

6. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15819, with DN Tanks, for the construction of the North Water Treatment Plant 8-Million
Gallon Ground Storage Tank.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15943, with Utility Contractors of America, Inc., for the construction of the Canyon Lakes
Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Phase 3B Project.

 

6. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change
Order No. 2 to Contract 14965, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of the
North Water Treatment Plant Improvements Phase III and the South Water Treatment Plant
Uprating Improvements.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement Contract 5739, with Freese & Nichols, Inc., for wastewater
treatment system evaluation, planning, modeling, permitting, and design at the Southeast
Water Reclamation Plant No. 3.

 

6. 13. Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15938, with Ace Golf Netting, LP, for the installation of litter fencing at the West Texas
Regional Disposal Facility.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Medical Director Agreement, between the City of Lubbock and Texas Tech
University Health Sciences Center, to provide the professional services of a qualified
physician to act as Medical Director for the City of Lubbock Health Department. 

 

6. 15. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Consent for
Assignment of the Airport Agreement with Mobilitie Investments III, LLC (M3), Contract
13161, to Mobilitie Investments III-A, LLC, at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 16. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Development Addendum to the CARES Act Airport Grant Agreement, between the City of
Lubbock and the United States of America, acting through the Federal Aviation
Administration, to fund eligible projects constituting airport development under the Grant
Agreement.

 

6. 17. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 27120456, for the purchase of seven Dodge Promaster paratransit
vans from Creative Bus Sales, Inc., for Citibus.

 

6. 18. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



6. 18. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through
Citibus, with Dallas Area Rapid Transit, for a GoPass Subscription and License Pilot.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Appointments
Advisory Board, Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority
Board of Directors, Citizens Traffic Commission, Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors,
Comprehensive Plan Oversight Committee, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission, Permit
and License Appeal Board, and the Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

7. 2. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3298-C, a request of Hugo
Reed and Associates, Inc. for Ford Development Corporation, for a zone change from
Two-Family District (R-2) Specific Use to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) at 3726
and 3716 146th Street, located north of 146th Street and east of Memphis Avenue, on 4.3
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4, and consider an ordinance. 

 

7. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0078, for Zone Case
2011-I, a request of Asken Properties, LLC for Frenship Independent School District, for a
zone change from Light Manufacturing District (M-1) to High-Density Apartment District
(A-2) at 6401 43rd Street, located east of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 43rd Street, Santa
Fe Park Addition, Lot 14.

 

7. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0075, for Zone Case
3435, a request of Studio 44 for Heartbeat Midwifery, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) and C-3 Specific Use to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 4413 4th Street
and 415 Raleigh Avenue, located south of 4th Street and east of Raleigh Avenue, Rushland
Park Addition, Tract M-1-A-2 and the south part of Tract B-1-A. 

 

7. 5. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Annexation Agreement with Starlight Development, LLC, for an area of land generally
described as approximately 552.51 acres adjacent to the southern city limits of the City of
Lubbock, south of 146th Street and west of Frankford Avenue.

 

7. 6. Ordinance 1st Reading - City Manager: Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 2,
Section 2.03.491 of the Code of Ordinances, regarding the establishment and membership of
the City of Lubbock Building Board of Appeals.

 

7. 7. Ordinance 1st Reading - City Council: Consider an ordinance repealing Chapter 2, Section
2.02.001(c) of the Code of Ordinances regarding certain duties of the City Secretary.

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 2. 4.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building Board of
Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors, Lubbock Reese
Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Planning and
Zoning Commission.

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
May 18, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 8, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
June 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting

Item Summary
May 18, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 8, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
June 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
5.18.2021 S EUB 
5.26.2021 S LEDA 
5.27.2021 S EUB 
6.8.2021 
6.21.2021S 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 18, 2021
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 18th of May, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 11:00 a.m.

11:05 A.M.    CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas and via video
conference and teleconference

Present: Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member
Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council
Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca
garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver
Council Members Juan A. Chadis and Randy Christian attended via video conference.

Absent: Mayor Daniel M. Pope

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in
discussions during the meeting in which the board considered the following topics as shown below.

Note:      The Electric Utility Board addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Public Comment 1.1-1.2; and Executive Session.
No quorum, of the City Council, was present for all other items. 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

1. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public will
have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a translator
will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on the Electric
Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the public
comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board Meeting. The Electric Utility Board shall
follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone who signed
up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for public
comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the floor to
anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same procedures and
guidelines.

No one appeared to speak. 

1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding any



1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding any
matter posted on the Electric Utility Board Agenda, may submit a public comment by email at
lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us beginning at the time this agenda is publicly posted and no later
than 9:00 a.m. on May 18, 2021. Each comment will be read aloud for a period of time not to
exceed three minutes, in accordance with the practices and procedures of the Electric Utility Board.

There were no public comments submitted via email.
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 11:06 a.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open session at 1:00 p.m. and adjourned.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss and

deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably related to
the following categories:

 
2. 1. 1. Generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those

costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling.

 
2. 1. 1. 1. Discuss and deliberate generation unit matters.
 
2. 1. 2. Bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric

Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 2. 1. Discuss and deliberate issues regarding Electric Reliability Council of Texas prices and

related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 3. Effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and

contracts.
 
2. 1. 3. 1. Discuss and deliberate purchased power matters. 
 
2. 1. 4. Risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage.
 
2. 1. 4. 1. Discuss and deliberate risk management strategies.
 
2. 1. 5. Plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other than

transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the public
power utility is the sole certificated retail provider).

 
2. 1. 5. 1. Discuss and deliberate plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements,

additions, or sales.
 
2. 1. 6. Customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system

load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.
 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 18, 2021 Page 2 of 5

mailto:lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us


2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the
advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers and hold a
consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the Electric Utility
Board under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: (i) legal advice and counsel regarding
the Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light for
authority to establish initial wholesale transmission rates and tariffs before the Public Utility
Commission of Texas and the State Office of Administrative Hearings, PUC Docket No. 51100,
SOAH Docket 473-21-0043, and associated Tariff Filing No. 52011, proceeding before the Public
Utility Commission of Texas; (ii) legal issues regarding contract(s) herein listed on the agenda;
(iii) power purchase agreements; (iv) legal issues regarding customer choice and Texas Utilities
Code, Chapter 40; (v) Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Docket Nos. ER16-1341, EL17-2,
and EL18-9, related to SPP attachment Z2; (vi) legal advice and counsel regarding matters
identified in Section 2.1-2.1.6 of this Agenda; (vii) legal advice and counsel regarding potential
statutory changes regarding ERCOT and/or electric utility regulation; (viii) Chapter 22 of the City
of Lubbock Code of Ordinances.

 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, and duties of a public officer or employee
(Director of Electric Utilities and General Counsel).

 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will approve the minutes from the Regular Electric Utility Board Meeting of April 20,

2021 and the minutes from the Special Meeting of the Electric Utility Board of May 4, 2021.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation and discussion of the update/report by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee,

regarding customer service, business center practices, procedures and policies, customer concerns
and complaints, billing forms and procedures, status of transmission and distribution projects,
mutual aid, weather events, outage, and restoration efforts, staffing levels, regulatory matters, and
operational performance metrics.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation and discussion of financial and capital statements, financing options, audits, and

financial policies of Lubbock Power & Light relating to debt issuance issues, reserve account
funding, cost allocation, revenue and expense projections, power cost recovery factor, customer
metering, tariff and billing, service and administrative issues.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities or his designee, regarding the status

Special City Council Meeting 
May 18, 2021 Page 3 of 5



3. 4. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities or his designee, regarding the status
of Lubbock Power & Light’s transition to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (“ERCOT”), and
public education regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding updates

on the legislative and regulatory matters regarding ERCOT and/or the electric utility industry, and
the status of any legislation, legislative hearings, rulemakings, and/or regulatory or administrative
action regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. The Board will consider a resolution recommending City Council amend Section 22.02.103 of Title

I, Chapter 22, Article 2.02, Division 3 of the Lubbock Code of Ordinances to permit Lubbock
Power & Light to update the fee structure for recovery of the cost of providing underground electric
distribution service as part of the annual review and approval of the LP&L Electric Rate/Tariff
Schedule.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA
 
4. 1. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee,

to execute a Public Works Contract by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through
Lubbock Power & Light and Primoris T&D Services, LLC, RFP# 7126-21-ELD, regarding LP&L
Construction Services for Feeder Redesign at Chalker Substation.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 2. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Orders by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Iljin Electric USA, Inc., RFP# 7119-21-ELD, for LP&L Substation Power
Transformers for fiscal year 2021-22.

*This item was deleted.
 

1:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The May 18, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day
of July, 2021.

 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 18, 2021 Page 4 of 5



  ____________________________________
DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
May 18, 2021 Page 5 of 5



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 26, 2021
8:30 A.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 26th of May, 2021, at
McDougal Companies Plaza, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas at 8:30 a.m.

  
8:43 A.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
McDougal Companies Plaza, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas 

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; Deputy City
Secretary Courtney Paz; Assistant City Attorney Kelli Leisure 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff
Griffith 

 

This was a meeting of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) Board of Directors. A
quorum of Council Members attended and participated in discussions during the meeting in which the
board considered the following topics as shown below:
  
Note: The Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. (LEDA) Board of Directors addressed agenda

items in the following order:  
1.1 and Executive Session
No quorum, of the City Council, was present for all other items.

1. MINUTES
 
1. 1. The Board will approve the Minutes of the LEDA Board of Directors Meeting of April 21, 2021. 

Motion by Matt Bumstead, seconded by Chris Carpenter, to approve the minutes of the LEDA
Board of Directors Meeting of April 21, 2021.

Vote: 7-0 Motion carried by the Board.

Other: Steven Cate (ABSENT)
   Sonny Garza (ABSENT)
 

 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 8:44 a.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 9:45 a.m.

 



2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.087 to (1)
discuss or deliberate in regard to commercial or financial information that LEDA has received from
business prospects seeking to locate, stay or expand, in the Lubbock area, or, (2) to deliberate the
offer of a financial or other incentive to business prospects described in (1) above. This will include
the project and goals update, and monthly activity reports of Kenny McKay, Director of Business
Retention, Carolyn Rowley of Director of Business Recruitment & Innovation, and reports related to
financial, budget, audit reports, and matters related to the Lubbock Business Park, Lubbock Rail
Port, and neighboring property and workforce/training projects.  Others may also participate in this
report including but not limited to, John Osborne, Jana Johnston, Christine Allen, Katherine White,
Katy Christy, Jorge Quirino, Rusty Smith, Andrew Sorells, Mayor Dan Pope, Mr. Jarrett Atkinson,
City Manager, members of City Council and Ms. Brianna Gerardi, Director of Business
Development with the City of Lubbock.

 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.072 to deliberate

the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property.  
 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.071 to discuss

legal matters.
 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, goals, compensation, evaluation, reassignment of duties, discipline or
dismissal of employee(s) or to hear a complaint or charge against an employee(s).
 

 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will consider a resolution to approve the April 2021 LEDA Financial Report.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation of project update and monthly activity reports for Workforce Development.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation of project update and monthly reports of Marketing & Communication activities.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. The Board will consider action, if needed, including the adoption of resolutions, to offer financial

and other incentives to business prospects or other matters considered in Executive Session and
ratification of performance agreements that have been approved by the Board.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on matters relating to the Lubbock

Special City Council Meeting 
May 26, 2021 Page 2 of 4



3. 5. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on matters relating to the Lubbock
Business Park, Lubbock Rail Port and active projects, including but not limited to plans for current
and possible future uses of the land, zoning, platting, mapping, marketing, services and utilities to
and from the properties, and any other matters related to the possible uses  of the land.  This
discussion and possible action on matters involving the properties may include but be limited to the
following items:

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. 1. Discuss and the Board will consider action, if needed, on property to be used for future

economic development opportunities. 

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. 2. Discuss the current status of the plans for developing the parks.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. 3. Discuss the current status of efforts to use the properties by businesses.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. 4. Update on the progress of the properties and any matters related to contractors and/or contracts.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. 5. Discussion and the Board will consider action if needed, on possible financing options

for improvements to the properties.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. 6. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on proposed future development of

the properties with construction and engineering projects and related contracts, regarding
projects and the development at LEDA properties.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. Architectural Review Committee Report

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 7. CEO Report

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 7. 1. Review LEDA Dashboard

*This item was deleted.

Special City Council Meeting 
May 26, 2021 Page 3 of 4



 
3. 7. 2. Employment Data Update

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. Chairman's Report

*This item was deleted.
 

9:45 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day
of July, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
May 26, 2021 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 27, 2021
12:00 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 27th of May, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 12:00 p.m.

  

12:01 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video
conference and teleconference

Present: Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy
Christian; Council Member Latrelle Joy; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver

  Council Member Randy Christian attended via video conference.
Absent: Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Jeff Grifith; Council Member Shelia

Patterson Harris

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in
discussions during the meeting in which the board considered the following topics as shown below.
  
Note:      The Electric Utility Board addressed agenda items in the following order: 

Public Comment 1.1-1.2; Executive Session; 3.1-3.3.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT
 
1. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public will

have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a translator
will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on the Electric
Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the public
comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board Meeting. The Electric Utility Board shall
follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone who signed
up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for public
comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the floor to
anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same procedures and
guidelines.

No one appeared to speak.
 
1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding any



1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding any
matter posted on the Electric Utility Board Agenda, may submit a public comment by email
at  lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us beginning at the time this agenda is publicly posted and no
later than 10:00 a.m. on May 27, 2021. Each comment will be read aloud for a period of time not to
exceed three minutes, in accordance with the practices and procedures of the Electric Utility Board.

There were no public comments submitted via email.
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 12:03 p.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 12:42 p.m.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss and

deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably related to
the following categories:

 
2. 1. 1. Generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those

costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling.

 
2. 1. 2. Bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric

Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 3. Effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and

contracts.
 
2. 1. 3. 1. Discuss and deliberate purchased power matters.
 
2. 1. 4. Risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage.
 
2. 1. 5. Plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other than

transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the public
power utility is the sole certificated retail provider).

 
2. 1. 6. Customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system

load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.
 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the

advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers and hold a
consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the Electric Utility
Board under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: (i) legal issues regarding contract(s)
herein listed on the agenda; (ii) power purchase agreements; (iii) legal issues regarding customer
choice and Texas Utilities Code, Chapter 40; (iv) Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Docket
Nos. ER16-1341, EL17-2, and EL18-9, related to SPP attachment Z2; and (v) legal advice and
counsel regarding matters identified in Section 2.1-2.1.6 of this Agenda.

 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 27, 2021 Page 2 of 4

mailto:lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us


12:30 p.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Executive Session, the Electric Utility Board will
reconvene in open session to discuss the items listed below. It is anticipated that the open session will begin at 
12:30 p.m. However, this is an approximation and the Board may begin the open session earlier or later
depending on when the Executive Session is complete.
 
 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. Resolution No. EUB 2021-R0038 authorizing and directing the Director of Electric Utilities to

execute and file, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power &
Light (“LP&L”), all pleadings, reports, studies or other filings at the Electric Reliability Council of
Texas (“ERCOT”) and/or the Public Utility Commission of Texas (“PUC”) toward migration of the
remaining portion of LP&L’s load to ERCOT, and to present testimony and otherwise provide
support before ERCOT and/or the PUC related to same.

David McCalla, director of electric utilities, gave a presentation and answered questions from the
Electric Utility Board. 

Motion by Greg Taylor, seconded by Edwin Schulz, to approve Resolution No. EUB
2021-R0038.

Vote: 9-0 motion carried by the Board.
 
3. 2. Resolution No. EUB 2021-R0039 authorizing the Chairman of the Electric Utility Board to execute

that certain Settlement Agreement by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through
Lubbock Power &  Light, and Southwestern Public Service Company, a New Mexico Corporation,
regarding that certain Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement (“Master Agreement”) dated as
of November 12, 2009, and that certain Transaction Agreement of the same date entered into under
the Master Agreement (the “Transaction Agreement”, and together with the Master Agreement and
any other transactions entered into under the Master Agreement, the “PPA”), providing for an early
termination of the PPA.

Andy Burcham, chief financial officer for Lubbock Power & Light, gave a presentation and
answered questions from the Electric Utility Board. 

Motion by Greg Taylor, seconded by Gwen Stafford, to approve Resolution No. EUB
2021-R0039.

Vote: 9-0 motion carried by the Board.
 
3. 3. Resolution No. EUB 2021-R0040 authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, to

execute that certain Supplement to Engagement Letter regarding the transfer of the unaffected load
to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and
through Lubbock Power & Light, and Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C.

Jenny Smith, general counsel for Lubbock Power & Light, gave a presentation and answered
questions from the Electric Utility Board. 

Motion by Edwin Schulz, seconded by Gwen Stafford, to approve Resolution No. EUB

Special City Council Meeting 
May 27, 2021 Page 3 of 4



Motion by Edwin Schulz, seconded by Gwen Stafford, to approve Resolution No. EUB
2021-R0040.

Vote: 9-0 motion carried by the Board.
 

1:03 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day
of July, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 27, 2021 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

June 8, 2021
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 8th of June, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:03 P.M. 
    

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video
conference and teleconference

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Citizen Comments 1;2.1-2.3; Executive Session; 4.1-4.2; 6.1; Citizen Comments 5; 7.1-7.5;
7.7-7.8; 7.11-7.13; 7.15-7.21; 7.6; 7.9; 7.14; 8.1-8.8.
Item No. 7.10 was deleted. 
Item No. 8.8 failed.

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2.2 on the Work
Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later
than 1:00 p.m.  If a citizen is attending the meeting by video or teleconference, they
may submit a citizen comment by email at citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later
than 11:00 a.m., on June 8, 2021. Submitted comments must include name and address.
Each comment will be read aloud for a period of time not to exceed three minutes
pursuant to City Council Rules. Citizen Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make
comments and express a position on agenda items. Any comment received that is in the
nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for
a response.

There were no comments received via email.

Sign ups: 

Victoria Victor - Idara Okpon appeared before City Council to speak, but the topic was not
listed on the agenda. 

 



2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

 
2. 1. Charter Review Committee Presentation and Recommendations

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Rebecca Garza, city secretary; and Chad Weaver, city attorney,
gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

James Arnold, chair of the Charter Review Committee, gave a presentation on proposed
amendments to the City of Lubbock Charter, as recommended by the Charter Review
Committee, and answered questions from City Council. The Committee proposed amendments
to the following sections of the Charter: Article IX, Council; Elections; Administration, Section
31: Non-substantive changes to the Charter; Article IX, Council; Elections; Administration,
Section 14: Compensation and Attendance; Article IV, Initiative; Referendum; Recall; Article
VIII, Bonds; Article II, General Powers, Section 15: Street Powers; Article II-A, Street
Improvements, Section 1; Article II, General Powers, Section 19; Public Works Improvement;
Article VI, Occupation Taxes; Licenses; Article II, General Powers, Section 23: Peace and good
order; police power; nuisances, control over; Article IX, Council; Elections; Administration,
Section 23: Salaries, officers, and employees; Article IX, Council; Elections; Administration,
Section 26: Audit and Examination; and Article IX, Council; Elections; Administration, Section
27: Contracts; bids for; limitations. 

There was consensus among City Council to further discuss the proposed amendments, and take
action, at a later meeting. 

 
2. 2. 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon

Joe Moudy, director of emergency management, gave a presentation on the 2021 IRONMAN
70.3 Lubbock Triathlon and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included:
an overview of the event; changes from the 2019 event; the addition of qualifying opportunities
for the IRONMAN World Championships; the City of Lubbock planning team; and assistance
from partner agencies. Additionally, Mr. Moudy introduced Todd Fitzgerald, race director with
IRONMAN; and Mike and Marti Greer, official liaisons with the City for IRONMAN, who were
in attendance. 

 
2. 3. Parks and Recreation Operations Update

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
Colby VanGundy, director of parks and recreation, gave a presentation and update on parks and
recreation operations and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: an
overview of the department and park operations; the development of park zones and recent
changes to the organizational structure of the department; focuses of parks and recreation staff;
the park playground inspection report; and challenges facing the department. 

 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.
 
3. Executive Session

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 2 of 10



3. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 2:39 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council recessed from Executive
Session at 3:35 p.m. The meeting was called back into open session at 4:47 p.m., and was
called to order at 4:52 p.m.

 
3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
3. 1. 1. Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas Surgical Health Services, et al v. City of Lubbock,

Texas, Case No.5:21-cv-114 in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Texas, Lubbock Division

 
3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following:

 
3. 2. 1. City Attorney
 
3. 2. 2. City Manager
 
3. 2. 3. City Secretary
 
3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code 551.074, to discuss

personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building
Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority, Lubbock Reese Redevelopment
Authority Board of Directors, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Planning and Zoning
Commission.

  

 
3. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087, to

discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to locate, stay, or
expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body
is conducting economic development negotiations; and to deliberate the offer of a financial or
other incentive to a business prospect described herein above.

 
3. 4. 1. Project Basil
 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:47 p.m.
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 3 of 10



4. Ceremonial Items
 
4. 1. Invocation

Pastor Todd Sons, St. Matthew United Methodist Church, led the invocation.
 
4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale.

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 4:52 p.m. 
 
5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 8, 2021.  If a citizen is attending the meeting by
video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on June 8, 2021. Submitted
comments must include name and address.  Each comment will be read aloud for a period
of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules.  Citizen Comments is
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

No one appeared to speak in person; and no comments were submitted via email. 
 
6. Minutes
 
6. 1. April 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board

May 11, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting 
  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Latrelle

Joy to approve the April 20, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
minutes; and the May 11, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Items 7.1-7.5; 7.7-7.8; 7.11-7.13; and 7.15-7.21. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 4 of 10



  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0057,

Amendment 25, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund to amend full-time equivalent (FTE) positions in Animal Services, providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0058,

Amendment 26, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Treasury.

  

 
7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0059,

Amendment 27, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Operating Budget for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance and Market Lubbock, Inc. -
Visitors Bureau.

  

 
7. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0070,

Amendment 30, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Airport
Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for the Capital Improvement Project 8648
Airport Pavement Maintenance.

  

 
7. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0071,

Amendment 31, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Water/Wastewater Operating and Capital Funds to appropriate additional funding for Capital
Improvement Project (CIP) 92455 Water Meter Replacements.

  

 
7. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0074,

Amendment 32, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund Operating, General Fund Capital, and Information Technology Operating Fund to
appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 8646 Public Safety CAD,
Mobile, and RMS Software.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and James Brown, director of information technology, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0074. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0072,

Amendment 33, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

  

 
7. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0073,   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 5 of 10



7. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0073,
Amendment 34, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Water/Wastewater Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement
Project 92587 Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation.

  

 
7. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0061, abandoning and closing

a portion of a 15-foot alley located in Block 1, Hewett Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0061. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a

portion of a Drainage Easement located in Section 7, Block JS, Lot 26, Spanish Bit Court
Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

*This item was deleted.

  

 
7. 11. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0202 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Easement and Right-of-Way by and between the City of Lubbock and Oncor Electric Delivery
Company, LLC ("Oncor"), to be utilized for electric power and communication lines and
associated equipment over, under, along, to, from, and through land more particularly described
in Exhibits A and B to the Easement and Right-of-Way, and including certain areas along the
following transmission lines across the City's Hancock Land Application Site.

  

 
7. 12. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0203 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License by and between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Cooper Independent
School District for a 3-foot wide corridor of the right-of-way of University Avenue between
137th Street and 146th Street, Lubbock, Texas.

  

 
7. 13. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0204 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License by and between the City of Lubbock and 2 Sparks and Company LLC, and
Burklee Hill Vineyards, LLC, for a portion of street right-of-way at 1109 Broadway.

  

 
7. 14. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0211 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 15826, with Lone Star Dirt & Paving, Ltd., for Unpaved Roads Improvements Phase 3,
for the paving of various roadways throughout the City of Lubbock.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city
engineer, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0211. 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 6 of 10



  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 15. Resolution - Public Works: Resolution No. 2021-R0205 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 15875, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of a brick paving project
at the intersection of 13th Street and Texas Avenue.

  

 
7. 16. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2021-R0206 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement 15597, by and between the City of
Lubbock and HDR Engineering, Inc., to perform dam inspection and evaluation services.

  

 
7. 17. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0207 ratifying the act of the City

Manager in executing, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Regional Transit District
Transportation Services Agreement and an Amendment thereto with SafeRide, Inc., for Medical
Transportation Services by Citibus.

  

 
7. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Lubbock Power & Light: Ordinance No. 2021-O0062, amending

Section 22.02.103 of Title I, Chapter 22, Article 22.02, Division 3, of the Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, to permit Lubbock Power & Light to update the fee structure for recovery of the
cost of providing underground electric distribution service as part of the annual review and
approval of the LP&L Electric Rate/Tariff Schedule.

  

 
7. 19. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0208 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas acting through the Texas
Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the temporary closure of State right-of-way, the
Marsha Sharp Freeway, during the 2021 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon.

  

 
7. 20. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0209 authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of

the City of Lubbock, to execute an agreement for professional legal services with Hacker
Stephens LLP, and any amendments thereto, and ratifying the acts of the City Manager in
executing an agreement for legal services with Hacker Stephens LLP.

  

 
7. 21. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0210 authorizing the Mayor to execute the

Third Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding with Palisade Pipeline, LLC, to define
roles and responsibilities of the City of Lubbock and Palisade Pipeline, LLC.

  

 
8. Regular Agenda
 
8. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0063, for Zone Case 1788-F, a

request of McDougal Realtors for Lubbock Prosperity, L.P., for a zone change from General
Retail District (C-3) to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for a Blood Plasma Center, at
4841 50th Street, located south of 50th Street and east of Wayne Avenue, Greenbrier Addition,
Lot H.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 7 of 10



  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.
Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0063. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0064, for Zone Case 2909-E, a

request of Callaway Architecture for S&S Commercial Properties, LTD, for a zone change from
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 6401
Spur 327, located south of Spur 327 and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 2.289 acres of unplatted
land out of Block AK, Section 36.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0064. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0065, for Zone Case 2984-M, a

request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC, for 34th & Upland Affordable Storage,
Inc. and 87th Street Partners, LLC, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial
(IHC) and General Retail District (C-3) to (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility
and Two-Family District (R-2), at 7115 and 7105 34th Street, located south of 34th Street and
east of Upland Avenue, on 19.74 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0065. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0066, for Zone Case 2985-C, a

request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Edge Construction, for a zone change from Garden
Office (GO) to Apartment Medical (AM) at 5614 114th Street, located east of Elkhart Avenue
and north of 114th Street, 114th & Elkhart Office Park Addition, Tract A.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0066. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0067, for Zone Case 3050-G, a   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 8 of 10



8. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0067, for Zone Case 3050-G, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Lubbock Land Investments IV, LP, for a zone change
from Single Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2), generally located
north of 123rd Street and west of Memphis Avenue, on 4.50 acres of unplatted land out of Block
E2, Section 22.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0067. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0068, for Zone Case 3431, a

request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 146th Street & Slide Road, Inc., for a
zone change from Transition (T) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for
Self-Storage Facilities, at 14505 Slide Road, located east of Slide Road and north of 146th
Street, on 17.320 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0068. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0069, for Zone Case 3433, a

request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Baxter Trusts, for a zone change from Transition (T) to
Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A), generally located south of 114th Street and east of
Memphis Avenue, on 7.84 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0069. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 8. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3432, a request of Dwain

Lane for Carolyn Lane Musgrave, for a zone change from Commercial District (C-4) and Local
Retail District (C-2) to (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Dance Hall, at 1801 19th Street, and 1904
and 1906 Avenue R, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue R, Lane Addition, Block 1,
Lots 1, 2, 5, and 6, and consider an ordinance.

This item failed.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 9 of 10



Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Chad Weaver, city attorney; Kristen Sager, planning
and zoning manager; Dwain Lane, the property owner; and Sandra Musgrave, the lessee, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve this item.  
  Vote: 3 - 4 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 

5:55 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The June 8, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day
of July, 2021.

  
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 Page 10 of 10



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

June 21, 2021
6:00 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 21st of June, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 6:00 p.m.

  
6:05 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas and via video
conference and teleconference

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session

1. Executive Session - The meeting recessed at 6:06 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session
under the provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 7:10 p.m. and adjourned at 7:11 p.m.

Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.076 to discuss or
deliberate the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security personnel or devices;
or a security audit.

 

7:11 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The June 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day
of July, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 



___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
June 21, 2021 Page 2 of 2



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0077, Amendment 35, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund Capital to establish and appropriate funding for Capital Improvement Projects 92711 Fire
Station 20, 92712 Transportation Improvements/Unpaved Roads, and 92713 Erskine Street.

Item Summary
On June 22, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

1. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92711, Fire Station 20, and appropriate funding in the amount
of $7,645,000. Funding will be General Funds Certificates of Obligation.
2. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92712, Transportation Improvement/Unpaved Roads, and
appropriate funding in the amount of $9,000,000. Funding will be General Fund Certificates of
Obligation.
3. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92713, Erskine Street, and appropriate funding in the amount
of $11,300,000. Funding will be General Fund Certificates of Obligation.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance 2021-O0075,
Amendment 36, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Lubbock
Power and Light Fund for the addition of four full-time positions.

Item Summary
On June 22, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend Customer Service Cost Center 7514, by adding 4 additional full-time positions. The
funding will be cash from Lubbock Power and Light Fund Balance.

1.

Fiscal Impact
The expected financial impact to Cost Center 7514 is an additional $19,370 in salary and benefits for FY
2020-21 and an additional $256,964 for FY 2021-22.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 
Resolution 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 37,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Storm Water Operating Fund
Revenue.

Item Summary

Amend the FY 2020-21 Storm Water Operating Fund Budget by decreasing Department Operations
by $734,878, from $23,700,249 to $22,965,371.

1.

Amend the FY 2020-21 Storm Water Operating Fund Budget by increasing Use of Excess Reserves
by $734,878, from $0 to $734,878. The funding will be cash from Storm Water Fund Balance.

2.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0076, abandoning and
closing a portion of a Drainage Easement, located in Spanish Bit Court Addition, Section 7, Block JS,
Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
This item was postponed from June 8, 2021, to June 22, 2021.
On June 22, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of a drainage easement in
Lot 26, Spanish Bit Court Addition (CCFN # 2016013471), and abandon and close a drainage easement
(CCFN # 2016013473), located in the south half of Section 7, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas,
adjacent to the Spanish Bit Court Development.

All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments
Ordinance - Drainage Easement, Spanish Bit Court, Section 7, Block JS 
Exhibit A - Drainage Easement, Spanish Bit Court, Section 7, Block JS 
Map - Drainage Easement, Spanish Bit Court, Section 7, Block JS 





















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a Drainage
Easement, located in Section 21, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, for a new plat for Fountain Hills.

Item Summary
This ordinance abandons and closes a drainage easement (CCFN 2014016353), northwest of Lot 105,
Fountain Hills Addition in Section 21, Block AK, Lubbock, Texas. Closure is due to the new plat for
Fountain Hills, Lots 184-209.    
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
 

Attachments
Ordinance - Drainage_Easement, Fountain Hills, Section 21, Block AK 
Exhibit A - Drainage_Easement, Fountain Hills, Section 21, Block AK 







LAND SURVEYORS 

CIVIL ENGINEERS 

HUGO REED AND ASSOCIATES. INC. 

j 

1601 AVENUE NI LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79401 / 806-763-5642 / FAX 806-763-3891 

TEXAS REGISTERED ENGINEERING FIRM F-760 

EXHIBIT TEXAS LICENSED SURVEYING FIRM 100676.00 

11" 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 0.1358 acre tract of land, located in Section 21, Block AK, Lubbock 
County, Texas, being further described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with cap set for the Northeast corner of this tract which bears N. 01 °46'31" E. a 
distance of 1713.86 feet and N. 88°09'49" W. a distance of 1454.79 feet from the Southeast corner of Section 21, 
Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 

THENCE S. 01 °50'11" W. a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap set for the Southeast corner of this 
tract; 

THENCE N. 88°09'49" W. a distance of 160.46 feet to a 60d nail set for a point of Intersection; 

THENCE S. 77°05'09" W. a distance of 128.82 feet to a 60d nail set for the Southwest corner of this tract; 

THENCE Northwesterly, along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 982.00 feet, a central angle of 
01 °15'08", tangent lengths of 10. 73 feet, a chord distance of 21.46 feet and a chord bearing of N. 34 °11 '29'' W. to a 
60d nail set for the Northwest corner of this tract; 

THENCE N. 77°05'09'' E. a distance of 139.20 feet to a 60d nail set for a point of intersection; 

THENCE S. 88°09'49'' E. a distance of 163.05 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Bearings are Relative to Grid North, NAO 83, Texas Coordinate System, North-Central Zone, City of Lubbock 
Geodetic Network and Aerial Control. Distances are surface, U.S. Survey Feet. 

Contains 5914 square feet 

Date: July 10, 2013 

Brent Carroll 
Registered Professional 
Land Surveyor No. 541 O 
State of Texas 



Proposed Closure of a 20' Wide Drainage Easement (CCFN 2014016353) 
Located Northwest of Lot 105, Fountain Hills Addition, in Section 21, Block AK 

------------------

0 50 100 200 

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatlal Data Produc:ts of the Government Code, this product Is for lnfonnatlonal purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represenlll only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 

Legend 

- Proposed DRE Closure

I� Ci f 

Lubbock 
TIUS 

Digital Orthophotography • April 2020 



, .. t"> 
A 

"f' 
-

� .,. CITY OF LUBBOCK EASE 2014016353 
PLAN NI NG DEPARTMENT IIIIIU�lllli�lllllllll�lillllllllll�I IIII 2 PGS 

P.O. BOX2000 

LUBBOC�iEXAS 79457 
STATEOF XAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

That FOUNTAIN Hll,LS, L.P. (hereinafter referred to as the "Grantor"), for TEN AND NO/100 
DOLLARS($l0.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, has by these presents GRANTED, BARGAINED, SOLD AND CONVEYED and by these presents does 
GRANT, BARGAIN, SELL and CONVEY unto the CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS, and tts employees, agents and 
contractors ( collectively herein referred to as "Permitted Users"), for the use of the public as a perpetual and permanent 
drainage easement the free and uninterrupted use, liberty of passage in, on, along, over, upon, under and across all of 
the real property as shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (herein referred to as 
the "Property") together with all and singular the rights and appwtenances thereto m any way belonging (collectively, the 
"Easement"), to have and to hold the Easement to the CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS and Permitted Users for so long as 
the public uses same for the purposes herein granted. 

That the Easement shall contmue so long as the pubhc continues to use said property for drainage 
improvements, which easement shall include, but shall not be limited to, the right to construct, reconstruct, maintain, 
repair, clean and clear said property for the free and unobstructed drainage of surface water, together with the nght of 
ingress, egress, and regress for such purposes in, on, along, through and across said property to accomphsh the purposes 
set out herein. 

That the CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS and Permitted Users shall have the right to set and determine the 
drainage grade and direction of flow of surface waters on the Property, and buddings or like permanent structures shall 
not be erected, or allowed to be erected, built or constructed in, upon, over, along, or across the Property, and if such 
erection, building or construcbon does occur in violation of this prohibit10n, the CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS and 
Pennitted Users shall have the right to remove said building or structure from the Pr'lf..�1·

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed this �day ofill!JJ,, 2014. 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

FOUNTAIN lllLLS, LP 

By: MORTENSEN PROPERTIES, INC., a 
Texas corporation, General Partner 

��£:, 'fYSEMORENSEN, Vice President 

COU NTY OF LUBBOCK § 
,/ 

. 

This instrument was acknowledged before me this /0/f.ay of�2014, by TYSEN MORTENSEN, Vice 
President ofMORTENSEN PROPERTIES, INC., a Texas corporation, General Partner ofFOUNTAIN HILLS, LP, m 
the capacity therein stated. 

,,.._.---.,.���"' 

Drainage Easement 
Fountain Hills (Lots 97-110) Pagel ofl 



.. 

:;:::::::::::-··----------

............ : ....
"··············· 

EXHIBIT "A" 

HUGO REED AND ASSOCIATES. INC.
i!::::!i :::::::::::::::: '\\•�;;•:·:: 1601 AVENUE N / LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79401 / 806-763-5642 / FAX 806-763-3891 

TEXAS REGISTERED ENGINEERING FIRM F-760 

TEXAS LICENSED SURVEYING FIRM 100676-00 

Jr/1111/ IIIUIIJIIIIII■■ 
"""' ••••••••••••••• \1111\' 

!//!II •■IIJIIIIIIIP '"11111111111' '11\. 
11,111,,, ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• , •• ,.,,.,,,,,11111• 

LAND SURVEYORS 

CIVIL ENGINEERS 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 0.1358 acre tract of land, located m Section 21, Block AK, Lubbock 
County, Texas, being further described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with cap set for the Northeast corner of this tract which bears N. ·01°46'31" E. a 
distance of 1713.86 feet and N 88°09'49" W. a distance of 1454.79 feet from the Southeast corner of Section 21, 
Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 

I 

THENCE s. 01°50'11" W. a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap set for the Southeast corner of this 
tract; 

THENCE N. 88°09'49'' W. a distance of 160.46 feet to a 60d nail set for a point of intersection; 

THENCE S. 77°05'09" W. a distance of 128.82 feet to a 60d nail set for the Southwest corner of this tract; 

THENCE Northwesterly, along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 982.00 feet, a central angle of 
01°15'08", tangent lengths of 10.73 feet, a chord distance of 21.46 feet and a chord bearing of N. 34°11'29" W. to a 
60d nail set for the Northwest corner of this tract; 

THENCE N. 77°05'09'' E. a distance of 139.20 feet to a 60d nail set for a point of intersection; 

THENCE S. 88°09'49" E. a distance of 163.05 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Bearings are Relative to Grid North, NAO 83, Texas Coordinate System, North-Central Zone, City of Lubbock 
Geodetic Network and Aerial Control. Distances are surface, U.S. Survey Feet. 

Contains 5914 square feet 

Date: July 10, 2013 

Brent Carroll 
Registered Professional 
Land Surveyor No. 5410 
State of T exas FILED AND RECORDED

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS

�� 
Kelly P1n1on, County Clerk

Lubbock County TE�AS

May 08, 2014 03 38 36 PM

FEE: $25 00
2014016353 

I -( , ,, 

(.' , ·. 
' 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, on behalf of the
City of Lubbock, four Easements out of Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for
the Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation Project.

Item Summary
The proposed State Highway Loop 88 corridor is currently encompassing an existing municipal sewer
pipeline from University Avenue to Indiana Avenue. Pursuant to State rules and current
intergovernmental agreements in effect, the City is required to relocate the existing sewer infrastructure
outside the proposed Loop 88 right-of-way. Under this Council action, the City of Lubbock is acquiring
four separate easements into which TxDOT's contractor for the Loop 88 project will relocate the existing
sewer line. The total consideration of $850,842, as valued in the Appraisal Report prepared by Tommy
Cantrell Appraisal Company, Inc., is subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

In accordance with Transportation Code §203.092, the easement acquisition expenses associated with
the sewer line relocation for Loop 88 will be reimbursed by the State.
  

Parcel Owner Acres Cost
Parcel 1 TBC Enterprise LLC 0.037 $  10,671
Parcel 2 and 2-A 1585 Development, LLC 2.635 746,077
Parcel 3 Landsome II, LLC 0.160 47,047
Parcel 4 Landsome I, LLC 0.160 47,047
TOTAL   2.992 $850,842

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the easement acquisition is $850,842 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92587
Loop 88 Sewer Relocation. (The easement acquisition expenses associated with the sewer line relocation
for Loop 88 will be reimbursed by the State.)

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments
Resolution - Four Easements, Section 1, Block AK 
Parcel 1 - Easement-Sec 1 Blk AK - Loop 88 



Parcel 2-2A (L) Easement (9) 
Parcel 3 - Easement-Sec 1 Blk AK - Loop 88 
Parcel 4 - Easment - Sec 1 Blk AK - Loop 88 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 



















18797
Text Box
EXHIBIT A





18797
Text Box
EXHIBIT B























18797
Text Box











































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended 92587

Staff time 27,504$                    

Design Contract with KH 529,400

Utility Adjustment due from COL to TX DOT 95,263                      

Agenda Item July 13, 2021

Cost of Easement Acquisition 850,842                    

Encumbered/Expended to Date 1,503,009                

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Contingency 106,123                    

Remaining Appropriation 106,123                    

Total Appropriation 1,609,132$               

City of Lubbock

92587

Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocations

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

July 13, 2021



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, on behalf of the
City of Lubbock, four Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds and one Drainage Easement, out of
Sections 30 and 31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue roadway
expansion project.

Item Summary
With the widening of Upland Avenue from 66th Street to 114th Street, the following street dedications
and this drainage easement will allow for the construction of the proposed arterial. The parcels of land
are located in Section 30 and 31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas. The total consideration of
$56,318, as valued in Appraisal Reports, is subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of
title. 

Parcel Owner Acres Cost
Parcel 69 & 69-A Catherine Marie Davis 0.220 $21,078
Parcel 97 Celebration Christian Center        0.076 9,900
Parcel 98 Celebration Christian Center 0.045 5,950
Parcel 106 Morgan Baker 0.048 19,390
TOTAL   0.389 $56,318

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the easement acquisition is $56,318 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92510
Upland Avenue, 66th Street to 82nd Street.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
 

Attachments
Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds, Drainage Easement, Section 30, 31, Blk AK 
Parcels 69 & 69A - Street Dedication Deed & Drainage Easement 
Parcel 97-Street-Public Use Dedication Deed -Sec 30 Blk AK 
Parcel 98-Street-Public Use Dedication Deed -Sec 30 Blk AK 
Parcel 106-Street-Public Use Dedication Deed - Sec 30 Blk AK 
Location Map 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 















































As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,
this product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Parcel 106 - 0.048 acres

PA
RC

EL 
10

6

Street and Public Use Dedication in Parcels 97, 98, and 106
on Unsubdivided Land in Section 30, Block AK

Proposed Drainage Easement Street and Public Use Dedication in Parcel 69 and 69-A
on Unsubdivided Land in Section 31, Block AK

93

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE

UP
LA

ND
 A

VEPARCEL 69

PA
RC

EL 
69

74TH ST

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

±

Parcel 97 - 0.076 acres

Parcel 69-A - 0.032 acresParcel 69 - 0.188 acres

Parcel 98 - 0.045 acres

76TH ST
76TH ST

77TH ST

78TH ST

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE
PA

RC
EL 

69
-A

PARCEL 69PARCEL 69-A
MARSHA SHARP FWY

PARCEL 98

PARCEL 97

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE

PA
RC

EL 
97

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE

74TH ST
PARCEL 106

Proposed 20' Drainage Easement

Proposed StreetDedication Deed

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE

PA
RC

EL 
98



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Staff Time 29,829$                      

Kimley Horn Contract No. 14034 1,180,000                   

Kimley Horn Amendment #1 1,373,400                   

TxDOT Construction Advanced Funding Agreement 948,931                      

TxDOT Design Advanced Funding Agreement 3,760                          

Agenda Item July 13, 2021

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 69 & 69-A 21,078                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 97 9,900                          

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 98 5,950                          

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 106 19,390                        

Encumbered/Expended to Date 3,592,238                   

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

ROW Acquisition 900,000                      

Construction 1,868,073                   

Remaining Appropriation 2,768,073                   

Total Appropriation 6,360,311$                 

Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street

July 13, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92510



Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This roadway is designated in the 2018 Master Thoroughfare Plan to become a modified principal arterial. This roadway is currently 

two lane strip paved. Development and growth in this area has resulted in this roadway exceeding the current capacity of the two lane 

structure. The first year of this project will fund the Environmental Study and Engineering Schematics for the Upland Avenue Corridor 

between 66th Street and 114th Street. The proposed second year will fund the Right-of-Way acquisition ahead of the improvements 

between 66th Street and 82nd Street. The proposed third year will fund the Engineering Design and Construction of a 5-lane roadway 

section that will include pedestrian elements, drainage, street lighting, and ADA compliance between 66th Street and 82nd Street. 

Bid Date - Design:7/4/2018

Award Date for Bid - Design:8/23/2018

Project Start Date - Design: 8/23/2018

Project End Date - Design:4/24/2023

Bid Date - Construction:10/2022

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 1/2023

Project Start Date - Construction: 3/2023

Project End Date - Construction: 3/2024

Project Justification

The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of the Citizens of Lubbock. The City must continue to 

anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing population in order to provide a safe and efficient transportation system. Due to 

continued development in the area of Upland Avenue, this roadway has become congested and the road structure is requiring constant 

maintenance in order to safely serve the traveling public. The current construction of the Marsha Sharp Freeway and Upland Avenue 

intersection by the Texas Department of Transportation will only increase the need for these proposed improvements.

This project has MPO participation.

Project History

$2,470,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

$448,687 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$3.6 million was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$841,624 was appropriated in FY 2019-20 Budget Amendment No. 2, Ord. No. 2019-O0146, October 22,2019.

Reduced appropriation by $1,000,000 in FY 2019-20, Budget Amendment No. 22, Ord. No. 2020-O0059, May 12, 2020.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

 Land Acquisition  448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

Construction  3,441,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  3,441,624 

Design and Engineering  1,700,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,700,000 

Right of Way Acquisition  770,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  770,000 

Total Project Appropriation  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 



Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2010 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

FY 2018 Gateway Streets CO's  2,470,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,470,000 

FY 2020 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 2,600,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,600,000 

FY 2022 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

TxDOT Participation  841,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  841,624 

Total Funding Sources  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution approving the inclusion of medians and islands in the
streets within the boundaries of The Ridge Development located along the west side of Quincy Avenue,
extending from 98th Street to 105th Street, City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
Chapter 38, Section 38.05.001(17) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock requires all
medians to be approved by the City Council before construction. The developer shall be required to
present to the City Engineer, the design and construction of a street pavement structure adjacent to such
medians and islands that exceeds the minimum standard specifications for street paving, and that design
and construction proposal must be approved by the City Engineer.

Pursuant to this requirement, the applicant has submitted the attached letter requesting permission to
construct medians along Quincy Avenue, with the medians and islands to be owned and maintained by
The Ridge Homeowner's Association, in accordance with the request of The Ridge and SWLLD, LLC.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
 

Attachments
Resolution - Medians for The Ridge Development at Quincy Avenue 
Exhibit A - Medians for The Ridge Development at Quincy Avenue 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 9.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15819, with
DN Tanks, for the construction of the North Water Treatment Plant 8-Million Gallon Ground Storage
Tank.

Item Summary
The purpose of this project is to construct a new 8-Million Gallon (MG) Ground Storage Tank (GST) at
the North Water Treatment Plant (NWTP). The existing 6-MG GST at the NWTP supplies water to
Pump Station 11 which pumps the water into the City’s distribution system. This GST is critical in
delivering water from the NWTP to the citizens of Lubbock.

During a freeze event in 2018, the air vent to the existing 6-MG GST froze shut, causing air to become
trapped within the existing GST during a filling operation.  This resulted in the tank becoming over
pressurized, leading to structural beams separating from the roof which caused the columns within the
tank to shift. The existing 6-MG GST is still in operation, but has severe structural damage and is in need
of replacement.

In response to RFP 21-15819-CM, two proposals from the following contractors were received and
opened on May 25, 2021.   

Contractor Amount
DN Tanks, Grand Prairie, Texas $8,326,400
Preload, LLC, Louisville, Kentucky $8,724,000

The proposals were evaluated by a four-person evaluation team using the following criteria: 60 Points
for Price, 25 Points for Contractor Qualifications, 5 Points for Safety Record Questionnaire, and 10
Points for Construction Time, per evaluation member.

After the proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained. 
Contractor Points

DN Tanks of Grand Prairie, Texas 387.25
Preload, LLC of Louisville, Kentucky 369.49

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the unit price contract to the highest ranked
proposer, DN Tanks of Grand Prairie, Texas, in the amount of $8,326,400.  The total amount of the
award is estimated based on expected quantities and actual expenditures may be more or less depending
on actual quantities.  Time for substantial completion is 485 Calendar Days with liquidated damages of
$1,000.00 for each consecutive calendar day.



Fiscal Impact
The cost of the contract is $8,326,400 and is funded in Capital Project 92660, 8-MG Ground Storage
Tank.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Map 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Report 





PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM 
UNIT PRICE PROPOSAL CONTRACT 

DATE: _______________________________________ 

PROJECT NUMBER:  RFP 21-15819-CM North Water Treatment Plant 8 Million-Gallon Ground 
Storage Tank Improvements 

Proposal of _________________________________________________________________ (hereinafter 
called Offeror) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Offeror, in compliance with your Request for Proposals for the NORTH WATER TREATMENT 
PLANT 8 MILLION-GALLON GROUND STORAGE TANK IMPROVEMENTS having carefully 
examined the plans, specifications, instructions to offerors, notice to offerors and all other related contract 
documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding the 
construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and labor, hereby intends to furnish 
all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance with the plans, specifications and 
contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated below.  The price to cover all 
expenses incurred in performing the work required under the contract documents.  

BASE BID 

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY
(+/-) U/M UNIT COST EXTENDED 

COST 

1 
All work as defined in the Contract 
Documents, except for those items listed 
separately below 

1 LS $ $ 

2 
All materials, labor, and incidentals 
required to install asphalt paving as required 
by the Contract Documents 

1,100 SY $ $ 

3 

Contingency Allowance for Unforeseen 
Field Conditions to be used solely at the 
discretion of the Owner and Engineer 
required during completion of the Project 
(miscellaneous work on a change 
authorization basis) 

1 LS $240,000.00 $240,000.00 

4 
Mobilization, Demobilization, Bonds and 
Insurance (Maximum of 5% of Total 
Contract Amount) 

1 LS $ $ 

Total (Items 1-4) $ 

REVISED

May 25, 2021

DN Tanks, LLC

7,978,500.00

107.00 117,700.00

143,600.00

8,479,800.00



BID ALTERNATES: 

The Offeror agrees to make, at the following bid alternate prices (Deductive Bid Alternates), the 
changes in the work covered in the Total Base Bid Price that are specified in the bid alternates 
priced below: 
It is understood that: 

1. All bid alternate prices shall be filled in. The work detailed by the bid alternate(s) is an
extension of the nature of the work for the Total Base Bid Price’s project. This proposal
requires that the undersigned Bidder propose on all work detailed by the Total Base Bid
Price’s project and the decrease in work as detailed by each and all of the bid alternates.
Failure to comply with this requirement of submitting a price for each and all of the bid
alternates may render the Bid non-responsive and may cause its rejection.

2. The acceptance or rejection of any or all of these bid alternates is at the option of the
Owner.

3. Acceptance or rejection of bid alternates will not necessarily be made on the basis of
price alone.

4. The acceptance or rejection of one or more bid alternates will not affect the Total Base
Bid Project bid, nor other conditions of this bid, nor the price of other accepted bid
alternates.

5. Reference this document for Method of Award.
6. Reference Document 01 11 20 Bid Alternates Coordination for information and

descriptions of each bid alternate (Deductive Bid Alternates).
7. The undersigned has carefully examined the plans and other contractual documents.

Through submittal of a bid, the undersigned agrees and understands that the documents
have been prepared with the highest level of care in the effort to coordinate the scopes of
the Total Base Bid Project. The undersigned agrees and accepts the responsibilities to
coordinate and construct all required interconnections and coordination facilities between
the Total Base Bid Project and any of, any combination of, and/or a total combination of
the Bid Alternates to develop complete and operational facilities that meet the regulatory
requirements for the facilities and the requirements set forth by these contract documents.

ALTERNATES 

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY
(+/-) U/M TOTAL LUMP SUM 

A-1 Active Mechanical Tank Mixing System 1 LS $ 

A-2 Demolition of Existing 6 Million-Gallon Clearwell 1 LS $ 

Total (Items A1-A2) $ 

Total (Base + Alternates) $ 

REVISED

-37,100

-116,300

-153,400

8,326,400



485

515



Four hundred twenty-four thousand 424,000.00



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Proposed 8 MG Water Tank
at the North Water Treatment Plant

0 100 200 30050
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

E DUBUQUE ST

N 
GU

AV
A 

AV
E

N 
GU

AV
A 

AV
E

Legend
Proposed 8 MG Tank

E BLUEFIELD ST

E BLUEFIELD ST

N 
GU

AV
A 

AV
E

E FOOTHILL ST

N 
DA

VI
D 

AV
E



Capital Project Number: 92660

Capital Project Name: NWTP 8 MG Ground Storage Tank

Encumbered/Expended 92660

City of Lubbock Staff 8,540$                               

Contract 14966 with Garver for Design Phase 

Professional Services

768,672                             

Agenda Item July 13, 2021

Contract 15819 with DN Tanks 8,326,400                          

Encumbered/Expended to Date 9,103,612                          

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Ground Storage Tank Construction & 

Construction Phase Services

746,388                             

Remaining Appropriation 746,388                             

Total Appropriation To Date 9,850,000$                        

July 13, 2021

Project Cost Detail

Capital Project 

City of Lubbock, TX



Project Name NWTP  8 MG Ground Storage Tank Project Number 92660

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Public Works Engineering

Michael Lowe

Replacement Infrastructure

Approved

This project will demolish the existing 8 million gallons ground storage tank (GST) and construct two replacement GSTs with 4 

million gallon capacity for each to serve the North Water Treatment Plant (NWTP).

Start Date:9/2019

Bid Date - Design: 10/2019

Award Date for Bid Design:3/24/2020

Project Start Date - Design:3/24/2020

Project End Date - Design:9/24/2021

Bid Date - Construction:5/6/2021

Award Date for Bid - Construction:8/10/2021

Project Start Date - Construction:10/11/2021

Project End Date - Construction:12/9/2022

Project Justification

The existing 8 million gallon GST at the North Water Treatment Plant supplies water to Pump Station 11 which pumps the water into 

the City's distribution system.  This ground storage tank is critical to the operations of the NWTP.  During a freeze event in 2018, the 

air vent to the tank froze shut causing air to become entrapped within the existing GST while it was being filled with water.  This 

caused the tank to over pressurize and separated beams from the roof structure as well as moved support columns within the tank by 

over two feet.  The existing ground storage tank is still in operation, but has severe structural damage and must be replaced.

Project History

Design has started with the intent of bidding late winter 2020.

$8,450,000 was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$1,400,000 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-16, June 16, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  8,850,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  8,850,000 

Design and Engineering  1,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,000,000 

Total Project Appropriation  9,850,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  9,850,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2020 Water/Wastewater 

Revenue CO's

 9,850,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  9,850,000 

Total Funding Sources  9,850,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  9,850,000 



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 

RFP 21-15819-CM 
North Water Treatment Plant 8 Million-Gallon Ground Storage Tank Improvements 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on April 27 & May 04, 2021. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on gobonfire.com from April 25, 2021 to May 25, 2021. 
53 vendors downloaded the documents. 
14 vendors were contacted separately.  
2 vendors submitted a proposal. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 10.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15943, with
Utility Contractors of America, Inc., for the construction of the Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer
Interceptor Phase 3B Project.

Item Summary
The scope of this project will include the replacement of a 408-foot segment of the Canyon Lakes
Interceptor pipeline within the BNSF Railroad right-of-way, west of Aztlan Park. The pipe segment
under the railroad can no longer adequately convey the wastewater flows, due to severe tuberculation of
the ductile iron pipe. A new PVC pipe must be installed within steel casing under the BNSF Railroad.

In response to RFP-21-15943-JM, two proposals were received on June 17, 2021. 
Contractor  Amount

Utility Contractors of America, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $492,870
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $533,000

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60 points for Price, 20 points for Contractor
Qualifications, 10 points for Safety Record, and 10 points for Construction Time.

A four-member committee evaluated the Statements of Qualification and the following ranking was
obtained. 

Contractor Points
Utility Contractors of America, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 385.88
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas 358.92

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the contract to the highest ranked contractor,
Utility Contractors of America, Inc., of Lubbock, Texas, in the amount of $492,870. This contract is
awarded by the unit price and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field conditions.
Time for substantial completion is 100 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed.

Fiscal Impact
This contract is in the amount of $492,870 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92318,
Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering
 

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Project Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Report 













1
71

7

11

10

20
19

1
22
23

7

4

24
5

4

3

2

21

2

2

4

16

5

3

6

27

2

5

13

6

1

3

UNSUBDIVIDED

4

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³
Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Rehabilitation 

Phase 3B Capital Improvement Project

0 100 200 30050
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

408'

AUBURN ST

Proposed Canyon Lakes 
Sanitary Sewer Interceptor

N 
AV

E L
N 

AV
E L

MASSENGALE DR

1ST PL

WAYSIDE

CESAR E CHAVEZ DR

GUADALUPE

INTERSTATE 27   US 87

CESA
R E

 CHAVEZ 
DR

GUADALUPE
WILLIAM

TUBBS

N 
AV

E M

1ST ST

N 
AV

E P



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

City of Lubbock staff time 131,891$                    

Bid Cost 2,834                          

Contract with LAN for Design & Bidding of Phase 2 48,990                        

Contract 11198 with LAN for CLSSI condition assessment 495,208                      

Contract 11908 with LAN for CLSSI Design and Bidding 689,484                      

Contract 12843 with LAN for design of Phase 1A, 2 & RPR Phase 1 660,540                      

Construction Contract 12733 with UCA for Phase 1 5,097,938                   

Change Order 1 with UCA for Contract 12733 350,679                      

Construction Contract 13037 with Ace Pipe Cleaning 855,485                      

Change Order 1 for Contract 13037 with Ace Pipe Cleaning (126,101)                    

Contract 14099 with LAN for close out services for Phase 1 48,990                        

Contract 13325 with FNI for RPR 18,066                        

Contract 14453 with LAN for Phase 2 EOR 173,880                      

Construction Contract 14354 with UCA for Phase 2 5,825,039                   

Change Order 1 with UCA for Contract 14354 226,880                      

Change Order 2 with UCA for Contract 14354 (232,507)                    

Agenda Item July 13, 2021

Construction Contract 15943 with Utility Contractors of America, Inc. 492,870                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 14,760,165                 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer Improvements 1,739,835                   

Remaining Appropriation 1,739,835                   

Total Appropriation 16,500,000$               

Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer Mains Rehabilitation

July 13, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92318





 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

RFP 21-15943-JM Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Rehabilitation Phase 3B 

Project 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 23, 2021 and May 30, 2021. 

Notice was published on Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD) State of Texas Bid 

Opportunities webpage. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from May 24, 2021 to June 17, 2021. 

5 individuals attend the pre-conference meeting.  

40 vendors viewed using Bonfire.com.  

40 vendors downloaded the documents. 

10 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendor(s) submitted a proposals. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 11.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 2
to Contract 14965, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of the North Water Treatment
Plant Improvements Phase III and the South Water Treatment Plant Uprating Improvements.

Item Summary
The City Council authorized construction Contract 14965 with MH Civil Constructors, Inc. of Amarillo,
Texas on March 24, 2020, with a contract price of $15,000,000 and 600 calendar days for completion of
the construction of the North Water Treatment Plant (NWTP) Improvements Phase III and the South
Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) Uprating Improvements. The Notice to Proceed was issued on May 27,
2020, and the project start date was June 15, 2020.

The City Council authorized Change Order No. 1 to Contract 14965 on March 9, 2021, which resulted in
an increase of $671,900 to the contract price, and an increase in construction time of 58 days.

Proposed contract modifications in Change Order No. 1 included: 
• adding additional rebar post-design to the new backwash basin at the NWTP;
• replacing Filter 16 media and underdrains at the NWTP following a filter blowout that occurred
during the project;
• replacing two valves on the filter backwash system at the NWTP that were discovered to not be in
working condition prior to the project start; and
• removing and replacing corroded metal baffles inside the plate settler basins at the South Water
Treatment Plant (SWTP).

Change Order No. 2 will incorporate one proposed contract modification. The modification includes
addressing the existing pipe supports for the 36-inch Concrete Cylinder Pipe (CCP) inside the
sedimentation basins. Upon blasting, significant damage to the existing aluminum pipe supports was
discovered; therefore, it is recommended to replace the pipe supports with a concrete corbel design that
will improve the durability of the pipe supports. These modifications improve the capacity and
reliability of the City's Water Treatment Plants.

This Change Order will increase the contract price by $149,224, with no change in construction time,
resulting in a revised total of $15,821,124, with a contract time of 658 days.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 14965 Change Order No. 2 is in the amount of $149,224, and is funded in Capital Improvement
Project 92353, South Lubbock Water Treatment Plant Expansion.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
 

Attachments
Resolution 
Change Order 2 (L) - MH Civil Contractors 
Location Map 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





115372
Text Box

115372
Typewritten Text

115372
Typewritten Text

115372
Typewritten Text

115372
Typewritten Text

115372
Typewritten Text
Therefore we are replacing the pipe supports

115372
Typewritten Text

115372
Typewritten Text

115372
Typewritten Text

115372
Typewritten Text

















_̂

_̂

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

19TH ST

US 84

0 1 2 30.5
Miles

±

Change Order 1 to Contract 14965 – North Water Treatment Plant
Improvements Phase 3 and South Water Treatment Plant Uprating

Project

N 
IN

TER
STA

TE 
27

AV
E A

US 62/82   SH 114

50TH ST AV
E Q E L

OO
P 2

89

S LOOP 289

N LOOP 289

98TH ST

130TH ST   FM 1585

North Water
Treatment Plant

South Water
Treatment Plant

173671
Text Box

173671
Text Box
2



Capital Project Number: 92353

Capital Project Name:

Capital Project Number: 92539

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended 92353 92539 Total

City of Lubbock Staff 2,929$             16,592            19,521                 

Advertisement 741                  741                      

Misc. Expenses & Allowances -                       43,335 43,335                 

Alan Plummer & Assoc. Study Contract 12220 22,800             22,800                 

Alan Plummer & Assoc. Design Contract 12560 48,500             48,500                 

CSA Construction Inc. Contract 12936 490,000           490,000               

CSA Construction Inc. Contract 12936 - CO #1 11,767             11,767                 

Alan Plummer & Assoc. Inc. Contract 12766 - EOR 58,900             58,900                 

Freese & Nichols Inc. Contract 12767 - RPR 71,520             71,520                 

Signature Automation Contract 13069 - SCADA 49,500             49,500                 

            181,000         1,362,234 1,543,234            

         1,303,585       13,696,415 15,000,000          

            193,991            976,949 1,170,940            

              42,700            629,200 671,900               

            149,224                       - 149,224               

Encumbered/Expended to Date 2,627,157        16,724,724     19,351,881          

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Water Treatment Plant Improvements 872,843           83,595            956,438               

Remaining Appropriation 872,843           83,595            956,438               

Total Appropriation To Date 3,500,000$      16,808,319     20,308,319          

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

July 13, 2021

Change Order 2 to Contract 14965 - MH Civil 

Constructors

Agenda Item July 13, 2021

Water Treatment Plant Improvements Phase III

South Lubbock Water Treatment Plant Expansion

Budget

Alan Plummer & Assc. Contract 13870 

North and South Water Treatment IMP. Phase III -  

Contract 14965 - MH Civil Constructors

Alan Plummer & Assc. Contract 13870  - Amendment #1

Change Order 1 to Contract 14965 - MH Civil 

Constructors



Project Name South Lubbock Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project Number 92353

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Public Works Engineering

Michael Lowe

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

This project is associated with a water supply strategy detailed in the 2018 Strategic Water Supply Plan.  The project will increase the 

South Water Treatment Plant's treatment capacity beyond the current 15 million gallons per day to 30 million gallons per day. 

FY 20-21 - Construction to re-rate the plant to 20 million gallons per day (MGD) by increasing plate settlers and filters for treatment 

optimization.   

The next step in the project will be to increase the treatment and pumping capacity of the Lake Alan Henry water supply infrastructure 

so the up to 30 MGD can be delivered to the City's water distribution system.  This step will include the construction of the pump 

station near Southland, Texas and upgrading the pumping capacity at the existing Lake Alan Henry Pump Station.

Project Justification

It is anticipated that the City's continued growth and water demand will require an increase in the Lake Alan Henry water supply 

capacity over the next decade.

Project History

The South Water Treatment Plant was completed in 2012 and was designed with the capability to expand to 30 million gallons per day.  

The first phase of this project is complete.  The first phase added an additional, smaller pump to allow for more efficient pumping 

when the water treatment plant is operating at lower flows.  

FY 17-18 - Budget for South Water Treatment Plant re-rating of Membranes & Plate Settlers Services. Construction of additional Plate 

Settlers, Membranes and upgrades to the South Water Treatment Plant to reach 19 to 20 MGD capacity.

The current budget is being used to obtain authorization from the TCEQ to re-rate the plant's permitted treatment capacity to 

approximately 20 million gallons per day (MGD).  

$1.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2013-14 Budget, Ord. No. 2013-O0087, October 1, 2013. 

$2.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2016-17 Budget, Ord. No. 2016-O0135, October 1, 2016.

Reduced appropriation by $500,000 in FY 2016-17 Budget Amendment No. 12, Ord. No. 2017-O0010, February 9,2017.

$1.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Construction  2,500,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,500,000 

Design and Engineering  1,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,000,000 

Total Project Appropriation  3,500,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  3,500,000 

51 FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program



Project Name South Lubbock Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project Number 92353

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

FY 2011 Water Revenue CO's  29,662  0  0  0  0  0  0  29,662 

FY 2012 Water Revenue CO's  334,257  0  0  0  0  0  0  334,257 

FY 2014 Water Revenue CO's  2,136,081  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,136,081 

FY 2019 Water/Wastewater Cash  1,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,000,000 

Total Funding Sources  3,500,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  3,500,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26Operating Budget Impact

 0 Facilities Maintenance and Custodial  40,000  40,000  40,000  40,000  40,000  200,000 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  40,000  40,000  40,000  40,000  40,000  200,000 

FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program 52



Project Name Water Treatment Plant Improvements Phase III Project Number 92539

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Water Treatment

Michael Lowe

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Purchase and install new equipment; modify existing equipment, facility and treatment system; and other major maintenance activities. 

Phase III of this project will include the design and construction of sludge collection equipment located in six separate basins at the 

North Water Treatment Plant (NWTP).  It will also include the replacement of electrical equipment associated the sludge collection 

system.

Project Justification

This project is for the evaluation, design, and construction of improvements to the NWTP including the installation of new equipment 

to replace old equipment that has reached its useful life, modification and rehabilitation of existing equipment, facilities, and treatment 

systems.  The project includes other major maintenance activities. Replacing and updating aging infrastructure decreases emergency 

maintenance expenditures and system failures.

Project History

The NWTP was built in the 1960s to treat surface water being delivered by the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority (CRMWA) 

from Lake Meredith.  The NWTP was constructed to treat raw water for the City of Lubbock and six other CRMWA member cities.  In 

the late 1990s, CRMWA began delivering a blend of raw water from Lake Meredith and the Roberts County Field to the NWTP.  By 

contract, the six member cities assist in funding upgrades to the NWTP based on the amount of water that is treated for them.  The City 

of Lubbock pays for approximately 80% of the capital improvements and the other cities combined pay for the remaining 20%.  

Since the NWTP was built in the 1960s, the City hired engineers to evaluate the condition of the NWTP structures, facilities, and 

equipment.  The engineering recommendations for rehabilitation and improvement of the NWTP are being implemented in phases.  

Phases I and II of IV phases have been completed, Phase III is currently in the design phase.

$2.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

Increased appropriated by $1,808,319 on 4/25/19 per BCR 1819-12.

$13.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Construction  16,808,319  0  0  0  0  0  0  16,808,319 

Total Project Appropriation  16,808,319  0  0  0  0  0  0  16,808,319 

67 FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program



Project Name Water Treatment Plant Improvements Phase III Project Number 92539

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

FY 2017 Water Cash  1,808,319  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,808,319 

FY 2018 Water/Wastewater Cash  2,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,000,000 

FY 2020 Water/Wastewater 

Revenue CO's

 13,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  13,000,000 

FY 2021 Water/Wastewater 

Revenue CO's

 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Funding Sources  16,808,319  0  0  0  0  0  0  16,808,319 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program 68



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 12.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional
Services Agreement Contract 5739, with Freese & Nichols, Inc., for wastewater treatment system
evaluation, planning, modeling, permitting, and design at the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant No. 3.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock has one of the largest land application facilities in the State of Texas. The Lubbock
and Hancock Land Application Sites consist of approximately 10,000 acres of land. For many decades,
the City has pumped treated effluent to these land application sites for disposal. Eventually, the City
began sending some reclaimed water to the Jones Power Plant to be used as cooling water.

More than 10 years ago, the City began upgrading the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP)
facilities in phases, with a goal to upgrade Plants 3 and 4, by incorporating biological nutrient removal
(BNR) into the treatment process, thereby allowing the effluent to be discharged to the North Fork of the
Double Mountain Fork of the Brazos River.  Plant 4 has been upgraded with a BNR treatment process;
however, Plant 3 still requires upgrading.  Improving the wastewater quality produced by Plant 3 will
assist the City in moving away from expensive land application disposal and preparing to use the effluent
for more beneficial uses such as Lake 7, and for a drinking water supply in the future.

This contract will allow Wastewater staff to determine the most cost-effective technology to use with
Plant 3 to incorporate BNR into the treatment process.  The selected engineering firm will screen and
evaluate various alternatives and provide recommendations for the City to consider. 

In response to RFQ 21-15739-TF, Statements of Qualifications from engineering firms were received
and opened on March 4, 2021. The five-person evaluation committee reviewed and ranked the proposals
and oral presentations using the following criteria: Project Team Organization and Qualifications - 30%,
Experience on Similar Projects - 30%, Project Approach - 30%, and Overall Responsiveness - 10%. The
maximum point value is 100 points per committee member.

After the responses were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained. 
Engineering Firm Score

Freese & Nichols, Inc., Fort Worth, Texas 467
Carollo Engineers, Inc., Austin, Texas 456
HDR Engineering, Inc., Austin, Texas 413
Plummer Associates, Inc., Fort Worth, Texas  389
Garver, LLC, Fort Worth, Texas 358



Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend awarding this professional services agreement to the
highest ranked proposer, Freese & Nichols, Inc., for a total contract amount of $379,628.  The time for
completion of this project is 365 consecutive calendar days.

Fiscal Impact
The contract amount is $379,628 and is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92674, SEWRP
Improvements Plant 3 Nutrient Removal.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Wood Franklin, Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution-FNI-BNR 
Contract- FNI-BNR 
CIPBudget- FNIBNR 

















































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

 Budget

Encumbered/Expended

  None

Agenda Item July 13, 2021

  FNI Contract- Plant 3 Biological Nutrient Removal Technologies Evaluation $379,628

Encumbered/Expended To Date 379,628             

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

SEWRP Plant 3 BNR Technology Preliminary Design 120,372             

Remaining Appropriation 120,372             

Total Appropriation 500,000$           

City of Lubbock, TX

92674

SEWRP Improvements Plant 3 Nutrient Removal

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

July 13, 2021



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 13.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15938, with
Ace Golf Netting, LP, for the installation of litter fencing at the West Texas Regional Disposal Facility.

Item Summary
The West Texas Regional Disposal Facility is required to install and maintain fencing around the
perimeter of the site to ensure that litter and debris do not exit the facility. The facility continues to
expand and increase the fencing installed on-site.

In response to ITB 21-15938-KM, the following bids were received and opened on June 11, 2021. 
Contractor Amount

Ace Golf Netting, LP, Austin, Texas $88,350.00
Comagri Inc., dba Agrination Netting Builder, Columbus,
North Carolina $124,875.00

Net Connection, LLC, Trussville, Alabama $106,500.00
Netting Contractors LLC, Navasota, Texas $125,002.50

Each bid also included several additional alternatives. Staff recommends award to the lowest bidder, Ace
Golf Netting, LP, for the base amount above of $88,350, in addition to bid alternatives #1-1 for 10
additional panels of netting at a cost of $8,500, and #1-2 for 100 linear feet of additional netting and
installation. The contract shall be for a term of 90 days after all materials have been received for
installation.

Fiscal Impact
The contract cost is $108,350, which includes Alternatives for 10 additional panels of netting and 100
linear feet of additional netting and installation, and is cash-funded from the Solid Waste 2020-21
Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Wood Franklin, Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Bid Form (c) - Ace Golf Netting, LP 
Project Summary 









City of Lubbock 

Solid Waste 

1TB 21-15938-KM 

Installation of Litter Fence at the West Texas Regional Disposal Facility 

Ace Golf Netting, LP of Austin, TX 

Quantity 

Item Description (+/-) UOM 

#0-1 Provide all labor, tiquipment, and materials t·o 
construct a new litter fence netting system at the 
West Texas Region Disposal Facility at 
Abernathy, TX. The litter fence will be a total 
of 750 LF by 30' high constructed on steel 750 LF 
poles. The new netting system must match the 
existing netting system exactly in order to 
maintain the integrity of the original design 
scheme, per specifications. 

Alternates: 

# 1-1 Pricing for 10 panels of netting, as described in 
the specifications, to be used as replacement 
material for existing netting. 

EA 

Extended 

Unit Cost Cost 

$ 117.80 $ 88,350.00 

850.00 8,500.00 

#1----2 Pricing for each additional 50 LF of netting 100 LF 115.00 11,500.00 
system and installation as specified above. 

#H ---- -P-r-ie-ing-for-add-itlenal--300----hF-o-f-netting--system ---- ---3-00- ---- -hF- - ---- --+1----5-;00- ---- -34-,¾0;08-
-and----instal-latioo----a-s -spec--ified aeeve. 

Total $ 108,350.00 





 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

ITB 21-15938-KM Installation of Litter Fence at the West Texas Regional Disposal 
Facility  

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 23, 2021 and May 30, 2021. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on BidSync from May 21, 2021 to June 11, 2021. 
Notice was published on Bonfire from May 21, 2021 to June 11, 2021. 
29 vendors viewed using BidSync. 
5 vendors downloaded the documents from BidSync. 
29 vendors took documents from Bonfire. 
10 vendors were notified separately.  
4 vendors submitted a bid. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Medical
Director Agreement, between the City of Lubbock and Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center,
to provide the professional services of a qualified physician to act as Medical Director for the City of
Lubbock Health Department. 

Item Summary
This is a professional services provider agreement with the Texas Tech University Health Sciences
Center (TTUHSC), to provide the professional services of Dr. Ron Cook to act as Medical Director for
the City of Lubbock Health Department (COLHD). In the event that Dr. Cook is unable to fulfill his
obligations for the term for the contract, the TTUHSC agrees to provide a suitable member of its faculty
to perform the services of Medical Director for the COLHD, as set forth in this agreement.

A medical director is a physician who serves as the clinical leader of a medical facility. He/she develops
and implements policies, procedures and best practices, and assures that the facility is in compliance with
all federal, state and local laws. A medical director is required to be a medical doctor, with at least 10
years of professional experience and must be board-certified within his/her area of specialty.

Dr. Ron Cook will perform the following duties:
a. Supervise procedures and protocols based on federal and state regulations, and on generally accepted
standards of care;
b. Approve COLHD manuals at least annually, after review and revision by COLHD clinic staff; and
c. Supervise procedures and protocols for clinical services currently provided at the City of Lubbock
Health Department.

Fiscal Impact
The City will pay $3,200 per month to the TTUHSC. The maximum amount paid is not to exceed
$38,400 per year or $192,000 over the next five years.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution Medical Director 
Contract Medical Director 















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Consent for
Assignment of the Airport Agreement with Mobilitie Investments III, LLC (M3), Contract 13161, to
Mobilitie Investments III-A, LLC, at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Mobilitie Investments III, LLC (M3), is restructuring and will assign all of its rights and interest in the
October 12, 2017 Airport Agreement to Mobilitie Investments III-A, LLC. The agreement will be under
the same terms and conditions to operate and maintain the Distributed Antenna System (DAS) Network
at the Airport.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Mobilitie 
Exhibit_A_Mobilitie (r) 
Exhibit B Mobilitie 





















































   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 16.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Development
Addendum to the CARES Act Airport Grant Agreement, between the City of Lubbock and the United
States of America, acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, to fund eligible projects
constituting airport development under the Grant Agreement.

Item Summary
The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has agreed to amend its CARES Act Airport Grant
Agreement 3-48-0138-045-2020 to reallocate $574,000 of funds awarded under 3-48-0138-045-2020 for
airport development. The FAA has approved the Development Addendum for Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport consisting of the following: CARES Addendum for Customs and Border Patrol
Facility Rehabilitation (Design).  The development addendum funds Contract 15200, Amendment No. 2
with RS&H, Inc., for the design and construction administration professional services of the Customs
Facility Rehabilitation project. The amendment was approved by the City Council on April 27, 2021.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact, as grant funds previously accepted and appropriated under the CARES grant
for reimbursement of operating and maintenance costs, are reallocated through the development
addendum to a separate grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Reso - FAA Cares Act 
Addendum to FAA Cares Act Airport Grant Agmt. 

































   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 17.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 27120456, for the purchase of seven Dodge Promaster paratransit vans from Creative Bus Sales,
Inc., for Citibus.

Item Summary
Purchase Order No. 27120456 in the amount of $683,326, is for the purchase of 7 Dodge Promaster
paratransit vans from Creative Bus Sales of Irving, Texas, per Contract SW0797C. The paratransit vans
will replace older vehicles that have exceeded their useful life, and will reduce maintenance and parts
costs.

The City of Lubbock/Citibus will use Federal Transit Administration FY 2017 & 2018 Section 5339(a)
Bus and Bus Facility grant funds to purchase the paratransit vans. The local match for this purchase will
be 102,499 Transportation Development Credits (TDCs)  provided by the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT).

There was no City of Lubbock procurement process for the paratransit vans, as the vans will be
purchased through the Oklahoma Office of Management & Enterprise Services Statewide Contract,
which is available through an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock and the State of
Oklahoma.

Fiscal Impact
Approval of this purchase order will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

The total cost of the 7 buses is $683,326, at $97,618 each, which is funded through Federal FY 2017 &
2018 Section 5339(a) Bus and Bus Facility grant funds.  The local match for this purchase will be
102,499 TDCs provided by TxDOT.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus

Attachments
Resolution - Promaster Paratransit vans 7-2021 
PO 27120456 (L) - Creative Bus Sales, Inc. 



















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 18.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Citibus, with Dallas Area
Rapid Transit, for a GoPass Subscription and License Pilot.

Item Summary
The Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock/Citibus and Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART),
a regional transportation authority, is for licensing of the GoPass mobile ticketing application for a
6-month pilot project with one-time fees for onboarding, hosting and maintenance, and a service level
agreement.

The GoPass application is an all-inclusive travel mobile application that provides mobile ticketing and
multimodal trip planning functions. The application supports the Mobility as a Service (MaaS) model by
combining transportation services from public and private transportation providers through a unified
gateway.

The agreement will give Citibus and its passengers the full functionality of the GoPass mobile
application through the duration of the pilot project.  Implementation of the project is expected to take 3
months from a fully executed agreement. 
 
This agreement shall commence on the date it is executed and shall remain in effect for a 6-month pilot
project with the option to extend to a 3-year term.

Fiscal Impact
This GoPass Pilot Project will cost $47,674 for the 6-month pilot, which will be paid for with FY 2020
Federal CARES grant funds, and no local match is required.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
GoPass Pilot Resolution 
GoPass - DART Interlocal Agreement 



















































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Appointments Advisory Board,
Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors, Citizens
Traffic Commission, Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, Comprehensive Plan Oversight
Committee, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Planning
and Zoning Commission.

Item Summary
Consider appointments to the Appointments Advisory Board, Building Board of Appeals, Canadian
River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors, Citizens Traffic Commission, Civic Lubbock, Inc.
Board of Directors, Comprehensive Plan Oversight Committee, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission,
Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3298-C, a request of Hugo Reed and
Associates, Inc. for Ford Development Corporation, for a zone change from Two-Family District (R-2)
Specific Use to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) at 3726 and 3716 146th Street, located north of
146th Street and east of Memphis Avenue, on 4.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4,
and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 3, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3298-C 
Staff Report 3298-C 
Documentation 3298-C 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3298-C 
City Council Meeting June 22, 2021 

Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 

Property Owner Ford Development Corp 

Council District 4 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 April 28, 2016: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2016-O0054 and zoned Transition (T).

 December 5, 2016, Zone Case 3298: This property was zoned to Two-Family District (R-2) Specific Use

from T.

 June 3, 2021, Zone Case 3298-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone

change to C-2A by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 9

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 1 (from outside the notification boundary)

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 2016 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the north of the subject property is zoned Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use and is vacant. 

The property to the east is zoned T and has been developed with warehouses. The properties to the south are 

outside of city limits and have been developed with homes. The properties to the west are zoned Restricted 

Local Retail District (C-2A) and are mainly vacant, with one of the properties having been developed with a 

house.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 3726 and 3716 146th Street and is located north of 146th Street and east of 

Memphis Avenue. The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from R-2 Specific Use to C-2A. 

Current zoning: Two-Family District (R-2) with a Specific Use 

Requested zoning: Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-2 zoning is “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly increased 

densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in accordance 

with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and high-density 

or non-residential districts.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed C-2A zoning is “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 

serve one or several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing shallow commercial centers 

adjacent to thoroughfares.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location is along Memphis Avenue, which is designated as a Collector, and 146th Street, 

which is designated as a Principal Arterial (Modified) by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Collector Roads are 

designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds, and provide access and movement within 

residential, commercial, and industrial areas (Comprehensive Plan, page 87). Arterials are continuous routes 

whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic (Comprehensive Plan, Page 86). 

The proposed rezoning will be suitable for these types of roads.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. The properties to the west and southwest are currently zoned C-2A and are vacant, and the nearest 

uses to the subject property are warehouses and homes. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low Density Residential”. While the 

proposed zoning does not meet the standards for low density residential areas as outlined in the Comprehensive 

Plan, it is at the intersection of a collector and thoroughfare, which would be appropriate for C-2A zoning.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the C-2A zoning district. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C. Aerial Map

D. Zoning Map

E. Future Land Use Map

F. Photos

G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 

Jacob Hawkins  Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2096 806-775-2109

jhawkins@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 3298-C 

Allowable Uses: Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A)

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Memphis Avenue and 146th 

Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

146th Street 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Memphis Avenue 
Collector 

R.O.W. 32 feet, one-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, four-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

4.3 Case 3298-C: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Ford Development Corp 

Request for a zone change to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) from Two-Family District (R-

2) Specific Use at:

• 3726 and 3716 146th Street, located north of 146th Street and east of Memphis

Avenue, on 4.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were nine (9) notifications sent out and zero returned. There was 

a letter sent in from someone outside the 200-foot notification boundary citing concerns regarding 

drainage and increased traffic. Staff shared the report, map, and photos of the surrounding area. Staff 

recommends approval of the request. 

TERRY HOLEMAN 1601 Avenue N, Hugo Reed and Associates, advised this is one of the final chapters in 

the Kelsey Park development. There are homes outside city limits that face 146th Street that are 

concerned. They had a zone case in 2016 and offered screening fences, which they will honor. In 2016, 

the original case zoned this tract R-2 Specific Use. In 2017, the property to the west of Memphis was zoned 

C-2A for Kingdom Prep Academy. In 2018, the City adopted Plan 2040 which set in place mechanisms to

allow non-residential uses on thoroughfares. In 2019, Sedona got their entire frontage zoned C-2A. We

now have a better context to allow something other than R-2. There is a collector (Memphis) and arterial

(146th), which will be a minimum of five lanes.  There is a warehouse to the east they were unable to

purchase which makes it difficult to make residential work on that corner. The issues in the opposition

letter are platting and engineering related; her concern is they will create drainage problems for her, but

she is already in a flood zone

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001240


Zone Case 3298-C 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON advised there is no stopping the growth of the City. The intersection is not 

good for residential because of the warehouse.  

MARK BENEDICT, 3727 146th Street, has lived there for 9 years and seen a lot of changes. He is not against 

development, but Sedona went above and beyond. His biggest concern is as development grows, no one 

has kept up with the dirt, which has destroyed his yard. Something commercial north of him will increase 

traffic. He has received no help from Ford Development or Kelsey Park in getting them to maintain their 

property and the dirt. He is ok with an office use, but not with a nightclub or other similar uses. Developers 

are destroying existing neighborhoods for new neighborhoods. All the construction has destroyed 146th 

Street and he cannot get a pothole fixed. Sedona built their fence as they said they would, Kingdom Prep 

Academy and Trinity have taken care of their drainage, but Kelsey Park has junk, trash, dirt, and weeds on 

their property.  

AMY BENEDICT, 3727 146th Street, stated they have horses that are sensitive to lights and noise that 

growth brings, including making it difficult for the horses to sleep. Lights and noise does not stop at 200 

feet. They already have to deal with normal city lights getting brighter and brighter. What consideration 

do we have for animals that she is trying to care for? She is also concerned about the potential use and if 

it will have trucks coming in a 2:00 a.m., such as a grocery store would.   

CHAIR ZACH SAWYER stated there are ways to deflect light and work through some of those issues. He is 

not able to answer questions about dumpster/truck noise, etc. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated the board is charged with whether or not the requested zoning 

district fits this tract of land. In this instance it does, because there is more C-2A to the west. 146th Street 

will be paved soon, because more residences will be built.  

 No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3298-C a motion was made by DAN WILSON  seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve the case as presented. The Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











3298-C 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View north. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View west. View of adjacent property. View south. 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0078, for Zone Case 2011-I, a
request of Asken Properties, LLC for Frenship Independent School District, for a zone change from
Light Manufacturing District (M-1) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) at 6401 43rd Street,
located east of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 43rd Street, Santa Fe Park Addition, Lot 14.

Item Summary
On June 22, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 3, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinanace 2011-I 
Staff Report 2011-I 
Documentation 2011-I 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2011-I 
City Council Meeting June 22, 2021 

Applicant Asken Properties 

Property Owner Frenship Independent School District 

Council District 6 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 002535 and zoned Single Family 
District (R-1).

• January 28, 1985, Zone Case 2011-A: This property was rezoned from Single-Family District (R-1) and 
Family Apartment (A-1) to Two Family (R-2) and Light Manufacturing (M-1) through Ordinance No. 008711.

• June 3, 2021, Zone Case 2011-I: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 
change from Light Manufacturing District (M-1) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) by a vote of 

5-0-0. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 37

 Received In Favor: 3

 Received In Opposition: 2 (1 of which is outside the 200 foot notification boundary)

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the east is zoned Light Manufacturing District (M-1) and remains vacant. The property to the 

west is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and remains vacant, with a church to the south. The property to the 

north is zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and is developed with homes. The property to the south is zoned M-1 

and is developed with a school.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 6401 43rd Street and is located east of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 43rd 

Street, Santa Fe Park Addition, Lot 14. The applicant requests a zone change from M-1 to A-2, with the intent to 

construct apartments. 

Light Manufacturing District (M-1) 

High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements  
The intent of the proposed A-2 zoning is, “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 

land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 

and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land 

uses. 

The intent of the current M-1 zoning is “…to provide for light industrial uses and those commercial uses 

requiring outside storage and display. The regulations are designed to provide for a mixture of heavy 

commercial and light industrial or manufacturing uses with proper standards to encourage attractive working 

areas for citizens.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Milwaukee Avenue, which is designated as a Principle Arterial, and 

43rd Street, which is designated as a proposed Collector by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Both of these 

types of roads allows for an efficient and highly connected means of transportation by limiting trip lengths 

throughout the City and providing multiple route options for roadway users. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. The proposed use is for the development for apartments. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial” land uses and notes 

that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity for A-2 is 

appropriate for this area. The Future Land Use Plan designates the surrounding properties for Commercial use. 

Although the A-2 zoning is not consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, it is appropriate next to the established 

residential use to the north and the school to the south of the subject property.   

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential and commercial uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the A-2 zoning district. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C. Notification Map

D. Aerial Map

E. Zoning Map

F. Future Land Use Map

G. Photos

H. Application and supporting documentation

I. Response Letters

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2107 806-775-2109

ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2011-I 

 

Allowable Uses:    High Density Apartment A-2  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Milwaukee Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Milwaukee Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

  

4.2 Case 2011-I: Asken Properties, LLC for Frenship Independent School District  

Request for a zone change to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) from Light Manufacturing 

District (M-1) at: 

• 6401 43rd Street, located east of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 43rd Street, Santa Fe 

Park Addition, Lot 14. 

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were thirty-seven (37) notifications sent out and we received 

three (3) in favor and one (1) in opposition, which stated concerns of increased crime, noise, traffic, and 

lower property values. Staff shared the report and maps of the subject property. Staff recommends 

approval of the request. 

OLIVER NASIELL 3420 Milwaukee Avenue Unit 1011 is working with the Frenship District and they really 

like the idea of multifamily homes in this location. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2011-I a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by ABEL HERNANDEZ  

to approve the case as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001142












2011-I 

 

  

Subject property view to the north. View to the east. 

View to the west. View to the south. 

  



















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0075, for Zone Case 3435, a
request of Studio 44 for Heartbeat Midwifery, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) and
C-3 Specific Use to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 4413 4th Street and 415 Raleigh Avenue,
located south of 4th Street and east of Raleigh Avenue, Rushland Park Addition, Tract M-1-A-2 and the
south part of Tract B-1-A. 

Item Summary
On June 22, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 3, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3435 
Staff Report 3435 
Documentation 3435 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3435 
City Council Meeting June 22, 2021 

Applicant Studio 44 

Property Owner  Heartbeat Midwifery 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2535 and zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).

 January 24, 1963, Zone Case 1059: A portion of this property was zoned to Local Retail District (C-2) from

R-1.

 September 12, 1974, Zone Case 1968-A: A portion of this property was zoned to Apartment Medical (AM)

Specific Use from R-1.

 November 13, 1974, Zone Case 1968-A: A portion of this property was zoned to C-2 from R-1.

 September 13, 1984, Zone Case 1968-C: A portion of this property was zoned to General Retail District

(C-3) and C-2 from R-1 and C-2.

 November 10, 1988, Zone Case 1968-D: A portion of this property was zoned to C-3 Specific Use from C-

3.

 June 3, 2021, Zone Case 3298-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone

change to AM by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 8

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has remained vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the north of the subject property is zoned C-3 Specific Use and is developed with a bank. The 

properties to the east are zoned C-3 and have been developed with restaurants and a package store. The property 

to the south is zoned Garden Office (GO) and is developed with an office building. The property to the west is 

zoned R-1 and is developed with a park. The property to the southeast is zoned Apartment Medical (AM) and has 

been developed with an outpatient clinic.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 4413 4th Street and 415 Raleigh Avenue, and is located south of 4th Street 

and east of Raleigh Avenue. The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from C-3 and C-3 Specific Use 

to AM. 

Current zoning: General Retail District (C-3) and C-3 with a Specific Use 



Page 2 of 2 

Requested zoning: Apartment Medical District (AM) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 

adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 

The intent of the proposed AM zoning is “…to provide for quality medical and related development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 

facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a 

medical center."

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location is along Raleigh Avenue, which is designated as a Local Street by the Master 

Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds 

and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas (Comprehensive Plan, 

page 87). The proposed rezoning will be suitable for this type of road.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. The proposed use is for a maternity clinic, which is appropriate adjacent to other commercial 

properties. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial/Light Retail”. The level 

of intensity for a maternity clinic is appropriate for this area, and AM conforms to the Comprehensive Plan 

principles and Future Land Use Plan.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the AM zoning district. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C. Aerial Map

D. Zoning Map

E. Future Land Use Map

F. Photos

G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 

Jacob Hawkins  Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2096 806-775-2109

jhawkins@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3435 

 

Allowable Uses:   Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Raleigh Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Raleigh Avenue 
Local, Completed 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Two-lane, undivided, 
paved  

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 4.5 Case 3435: Studio 44 for Heartbeat Midwifery 

Request for a zone change to Apartment-Medical District (AM) from General Retail District (C-3) 

and C-3 Specific Use at: 

• 4413 4th Street and 415 Raleigh Avenue, located south of 4th Street and east of Raleigh 

Avenue, Rushland Park Addition, Tract M-1-A-2 and the south part of Tract B-1-A. 

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were eight (8) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff 

shared the report, maps and photos of the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of the 

request. 

DEBRA PITTMAN 415 Raleigh Avenue is the designer for the subject property. Her client is a midwife and 

already has a business on 24th Street. This will be a new clinic with 3 birthing rooms. The design of the 

building is a residential style, which will be consistent with the surrounding area. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3435 a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by TANNER NOBLE to 

approve the case as presented. The Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001175










3435 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View south. View of adjacent property. View west. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north. View of adjacent property. View east. 



Jacob Geyman4/30/2021



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Annexation
Agreement with Starlight Development, LLC, for an area of land generally described as approximately
552.51 acres adjacent to the southern city limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 146th Street and west
of Frankford Avenue.

Item Summary
Starlight Development, LLC is the owner of the tract of land containing approximately 552.51 acres
adjacent to the southern city limits of the City of Lubbock. The owner is requesting consideration of
voluntary annexation of the land into the City.

The first step in the voluntary annexation process is to establish a service plan that both the City and the
property owner agree to. The proposed annexation agreement sets forth the plan for services between the
City of Lubbock and Starlight Development, LLC. If the agreement is approved by the City Council,
staff will schedule a public hearing to consider annexation of the property.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning

Attachments
Resolution - Annexation Agreement at 146th and Frankford 
Annexation_Agreement (r)_-_146th_and_Frankford 
Annexation Map 
Annexation Application 





























As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

CITY LIMITS (IN)

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
Feet

±

Proposed Annexation Area (552.51 Ac. Total) Located in 
Section 10, Block AK, Lubbock County

AK-7

CR
 18

40

HIGHLAND

OAKS

Proposed Annexation
Area (552.51 Ac.)

AK-10AK-11
CITY LIMITS (OUT)

CITY OF LUBBOCK

CR 7600   WOODROW RD

CR 7500 146TH ST

CR 7540

SOUTHWEST

GARDENS

CR
 18

00
FR

AN
KF

OR
D 

AV
E























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - City Manager: Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 2, Section 2.03.491
of the Code of Ordinances, regarding the establishment and membership of the City of Lubbock
Building Board of Appeals.

Item Summary
This ordinance amends the required qualifications of the licensed master plumber position and licensed
master electrician position. This change removes the designation of master plumber and master
electrician, to allow for an active plumber licensed by the State of Texas to qualify, and an active
electrician licensed by the State of Texas, to qualify for these positions.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Greg Zielinski, City Building Official

Attachments
Ordinance - Bldg Brd of Appeals Membership 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - City Council: Consider an ordinance repealing Chapter 2, Section 2.02.001(c)
of the Code of Ordinances regarding certain duties of the City Secretary.

Item Summary
Chapter 2, Section 2.02.001(c) of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances states “Additional Duties of
the City Secretary. The department of the City Council Staff shall report to and be responsible to the
City Secretary, and that the City Secretary shall be responsible for all activities and duties of such
department.” The proposed agenda item would repeal the Additional Duties of the City Secretary.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
City Council

Attachments
Ordinance - City Council Staff 






	Agenda
	2.04.__Board Appointments 
	5.01.__Minutes - May 18, 2021S; May 26, 2021S; May 27, 2021 S; June 8, 2021R; June 21, 2021S
	       ATT_5.18.2021 S EUB
	       ATT_5.26.2021 S LEDA
	       ATT_5.27.2021 S EUB
	       ATT_6.8.2021
	       ATT_6.21.2021S
	6.01.__Budget Amendment 35
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.02.__Budget Amendment 36
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.03.__Budget Amendment 37
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.04.__ROW - Drainage Easement, Spanish Bit Court, Section 7 Block JS 
	       ATT_Ordinance - Drainage Easement, Spanish Bit Court, Section 7, Block JS
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Drainage Easement, Spanish Bit Court, Section 7, Block JS
	       ATT_Map - Drainage Easement, Spanish Bit Court, Section 7, Block JS
	6.05.__ROW - Drainage Easement, Fountain Hills, Section 21 Block AK
	       ATT_Ordinance - Drainage_Easement, Fountain Hills, Section 21, Block AK
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Drainage_Easement, Fountain Hills, Section 21, Block AK
	6.06.__ROW - Four Easements, Section 1 Block AK for Loop 88
	       ATT_Resolution - Four Easements, Section 1, Block AK
	       ATT_Parcel 1 - Easement-Sec 1 Blk AK - Loop 88
	       ATT_Parcel 2-2A (L) Easement (9)
	       ATT_Parcel 3 - Easement-Sec 1 Blk AK - Loop 88
	       ATT_Parcel 4 - Easment - Sec 1 Blk AK - Loop 88
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	6.07.__ROW - Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds and Drainage Easement, Sec 30-31, Blk AK
	       ATT_Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds, Drainage Easement, Section 30, 31, Blk AK
	       ATT_Parcels 69 and 69A - Street Dedication Deed _ Drainage Easement
	       ATT_Parcel 97-Street-Public Use Dedication Deed -Sec 30 Blk AK 
	       ATT_Parcel 98-Street-Public Use Dedication Deed -Sec 30 Blk AK 
	       ATT_Parcel 106-Street-Public Use Dedication Deed - Sec 30 Blk AK 
	       ATT_Location Map 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.08.__Resolution - Medians in The Ridge Development at Quincy Ave.
	       ATT_Resolution - Medians for The Ridge Development at Quincy Avenue 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Medians for The Ridge Development at Quincy Avenue
	6.09.__Contract -  DN Tanks for NWTP 8-MG Tank
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Report
	6.10.__Contract with UCA - Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer Rehab
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract
	       ATT_Project Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Report
	6.11.__Contract CO #2, MH Civil Constructors - SWTP Improvements
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Change Order 2 (L) - MH Civil Contractors
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.12.__Freese & Nichols, Inc. - SEWRP #3 BNR Technology Evaluation
	       ATT_Resolution-FNI-BNR
	       ATT_Contract- FNI-BNR
	       ATT_CIPBudget- FNIBNR
	6.13.__Installation of Litter Fence at the West Texas Regional Disposal Fcility with Ace Golf Netting, LP
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Bid Form (c) - Ace Golf Netting, LP
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.14.__Medical Director Contract
	       ATT_Resolution Medical Director
	       ATT_Contract Medical Director
	6.15.__Mobilitie Assignment of Agreement at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution - Mobilitie
	       ATT_Exhibit_A_Mobilitie (r)
	       ATT_Exhibit B Mobilitie
	6.16.__Development Addendum to Grant Agreement with FAA
	       ATT_Reso - FAA Cares Act
	       ATT_Addendum to FAA Cares Act Airport Grant Agmt.
	6.17.__Citibus/Promaster paratransit vans purchase - 7 
	       ATT_Resolution - Promaster Paratransit vans 7-2021
	       ATT_PO 27120456 (L) - Creative Bus Sales, Inc.
	6.18.__Citibus/DART Go Pass Pilot Interlocal Agreement
	       ATT_GoPass Pilot Resolution 
	       ATT_GoPass - DART Interlocal Agreement
	7.01.__Board Appointments 
	7.02.__Zone Case
	       ATT_Ordinance 3298-C
	       ATT_Staff Report 3298-C
	       ATT_Documentation 3298-C
	3298-C Staff Report - with KS edits
	3298-C Case Information
	3298c_1locator
	3298c_2imag
	3298c_3zoning
	3298c_4flup
	3298-C Application

	7.03.__Zone Case 2011-I
	       ATT_Ordinanace 2011-I
	       ATT_Staff Report 2011-I
	       ATT_Documentation 2011-I
	7.04.__Zone Case 3435
	       ATT_Ordinance 3435
	       ATT_Staff Report 3435
	       ATT_Documentation 3435
	3435 Staff Report - with KS edits
	3435 Case Information
	3435_1locator
	3435_2imag
	3435_3zoning
	3435_4flup
	3435 Application

	7.05.__Voluntary Annexation at 146th and Frankford (552.51 acres)
	       ATT_Resolution - Annexation Agreement at 146th and Frankford
	       ATT_Annexation_Agreement (r)_-_146th_and_Frankford
	       ATT_Annexation Map
	       ATT_Annexation Application
	7.06.__Ordinance Amending Bldg Board of Appeals Membership
	       ATT_Ordinance - Bldg Brd of Appeals Membership
	7.07.__Council Staff Assignment
	       ATT_Ordinance - City Council Staff

